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£ PART I
€ INTRODUCTION
£ 1
€; - -
e (a} Setting up of the Commission
On April 26. 1985, the Central Governinent anndunced in Parliament then n session. the appoint-
& ment of a Commission under section 3 of the Commissions-of Inquiry Act. 1952, and by Notficetion in
& the Gazeite of India Extraordinary of the same date this Commission was duly constituted with the
following terms of reference : g
& {i} to inquire into the allegations in regard to the incidents of organised violence which took
& place in Delhi following the assassination of the late Prime Minister. Smt. Indira Gandhi;
€ (i) to recommend measures which may be adopt.d for prevention of recurience of such
incidents.
& Following the accord between the Prime Minister of Jndia and the late Shri Haichand Singh
o Longowal, the Akali leader, on July 24, 1985, the Commission’s spheie of inquivy was exiended to i
= Kanpui in the State of Uttar Pradesh and Bokaro in the State of Biher by Notification dated September
3. 1985.  After the Commission visited Bokaro for a preliminary inquiry, it transpited that the major
€ pait of the incidents took place within the Chas area which was outside Bokaro Tehsil and ona reference
o made by the Commission indicziing this fact. the Central Government modified the terms of reference
’ hy Nouficatron dated October 10. 1985 to cover the incidents within the Bokaro Tehsil as also the
€@ Chas Tehsil. The first aspect referred 10 the Commission now 1eads thus :
I ~to inquire into the allegations 1o regard to the incidents of organised violenie which took
~lage in Dethi and the disturbances which took place in the Bokaro Tehsil, in Chas Tehsit and
4 at Kznpur following the assassination of the late Prime Minister. Shrimati Indha Gendhi.”
€ . .. .
Following the assassination of the late Prime Minister, there was riotous upsurge at Deihi and
& several other places in the country. Hundreds of Sikhs were killed: several others were injured and
€ manhandizd; then houses and other properties were burnt down as a iesult of arson; many of them
” were rendered homeless. The Home Minister made a statement on the floor of the Rajya Sabha that
S the number of Sikhs killed in Delhi during November 1984 riots was 2146; 586 peisons were caid 1o
© have been killed in other parts of the country during that period.
. Fiom the terms of reference it is clear that so far as Delhi riots are coneerned, the Commission has
- to inquiie 1nto the allegations in regard to incidents of “organised violence™ while inregaid to the other
2 named places the inguiry s into the “disturbances’ following the assassination of the late Prime Minister,
& Smt Indirc Gandhi. The effect of the distincon would be appropriately dealt with at the relevant
i slace.
It
@
(b) Fmnctioning of the Commission
@ =4
© On June 1, 1985, Shri R. L. Gupta. a m2mber of the Deihi Higher Judictal Service, reported to
duty as Secretary 10 the Commission.  On Julv 5. 1983, the building at 5 Dr. Rajendra Prasad Road
& : was placed at the disposal of the Commission for housing the Commission’s establishment.  Provision
& : for furniture and furmishing the building in order to make the tooms suitable took some more tine.
g On July 9. 1985, the Notification by the Commission inviting all persons acquainted with the

subject-maiter Of jnquiry to furnish to the Commission information in the form of affidavits relating
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Purties appearing before the Commission for the Delhi inguiry were called upon to disclose thcir\;
stand in writing in regard to the first aspect referred to it.  The CIC adopted the following stand ;:—

“Fiom the materials availuble to the Committee, prima facie, it appears that the violence
in Delhi was promeditated, organiscd and was perpetrated methodically in a systematic manner
so as to lead to the irresistible conclusion of central direction, guidance and control. This
task was without doubt performed with the complicity, connivance and active involvemcnt

- of the administration as well as the members of the ruling party.”

The Delhi Sikh Gurudwara Management Committee adopted an allied stand by stating :

“The stand of the DSGMC is that the mass violence and carnage which took place in Delhi
and other parts of the country from 31st October to 7th November, 1984, on the assassination
of the Hon'ble the then Prime Minister, Shrimati Indira Gandhi, was an organised violence.
It was committed in the same pattern not only in Delhi but also in other parts of the country
including Kanpur and Bokaro against the Sikh community.”

| The Shiromani Akali Dal (L) adopted this stand. The Nagrik Suraksha Samiti (Arya Samaj) adopted
.the following stand :

“The stand of the Samiti is that the riots, arson and looting which took place in the wake
of assassination of Smt. Indira Gandhi were not the handywork of any o1ganised group of
people. To say that the 1iots were organised is wholly incorrect. The fact and the truth of
the matter is that the ricts, arson and looting which took place immedijately on the assassination
of Sint. Indira Gandhi were all sporadic and spontaneous and got erupted on grave provocation
and anger on account of the tragic assassination of the late Prime Minister,. Shrimati Indira
Gandhi who was greatly loved and respected by the people at large.

Mrs. Gandhi's tragic assassination aroused a sudden and tremendous fecling of shock,
distressand an uncontrollable anger amongst the people. A scection of the people who could not
control themsslves reacted sharply; and in the spate of anger, went on a spree killing, looting
and burning shops and houses belonging to members of the Sikh community. The said un-
identified section of the people had in their mind the events that had taken place in Punich
earlier and had known the atrocities committed by some members of the Sikh comimnunity as
extremists. The assassination of Smt. Gandhi was the most heinous and sinful act of a handful
of Sikhs but the people in their anger went to take revenge on members of the Sikh commu.
nity as the assassins belonged to the said community. .. ... .”

Some other parties took a similar stand.

The Unrion of India did notadopt any stand and informed the Commission that the question has
to be inquired into and decided by the Commission and Central Government had no view to express.
1t assured all co-operation in the mf‘um and §a1d that the Report was awaited.

The D:iht Administration denied the allegation of orgainsed violence and stated that all possible
steps were taken to quell the riots at shortest time possible.

At Kanpur, the Kanpur Riots Inquiry Co-ordination Committee which emerged as the spokesman
of the victims implicated the District Administration — the District Magistrate and the Police in the
mun — {or what hanozned and also contended that the riots were organised. The State Government,
on the otaer hand, denied all that and maintained that every possible steps had been taken 10 meet the
notous situation and restore normaley.

At Bokaro, on behalf of the victims the stand taken was of negligence of the local admmxstranon
and the lead and help extended by local leaders. The State of Bihar depied the allegations and main
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tained that prompt steps weie taken by the Administration as a result of which the situation was rought
under full conirol within a few hours.

v

H

{5 Collection of facts

Applications were moved bzfore the Commission in the Delhi inquiry by the CJC for direction
for production of documents. A long list thereof was given.  After the list was scanned the Commission
was of the view that it would be more expedient to allow interrogatories on “specific aspects than calling
for the docamsnts. The suggestion of the Commission was accepted by the CJC and two applications
ware filed for leave to put interrogatories to the Dethi Administration, the Union of india and certain
other parties. Agresing with the obje.tions of the Delhi Administration and the Union of India, the
Commission found that a few of the interrogatories wese on irrelevant aspects and certain information
in public interest could 0ot bs required to be disclosed.  On these two gioundsa few of the interrogatories -
were not permitted to be put but the Commission accorded leave for most of them. The interrogatories
werz duly answered and the amswers were supplied to the parties. Similar procedure was followed at
Kanput and Bokaro. Ceitain documents weie called from non-governmental zgencies and wherever
available the same were also produced and made available to parties.

Vv

Before the Commission, for the inquiry at the respective piaces, the Commission directed some of
the deponents to be cross-examined. It may be stated that most of these deponents were picked up at
the instance of the victims. Their affidavits were taken as evidence-in-chief and cross-examination was
allowzd to be done by the Union of India and the respective State Governmentsf Administration as was
necessary and on behalf of victims where the stand taken in the affidavit was in support of the Adminis-
tration.. The persons so examined weie : Delht 128, Kanpur 97, Bokaro 45, At the instance of some
of the other parties questions were suggested to the Commission and wherever it wes satisfied, the said
questions were put and answers were obtained. Wheiever such deponents wanted to make any further
statement, the Commissionn made a separate record of it for its. pwpose. These statements usually
related to problems of rehabilitation.

VI
(e) Interference with the working of the Commission
Representution of victims :

While deponents were being cross-examined, constant complaints used to be received of inter-
ference and harassment at all the three places. Some of the victims stated that they were threatened

- by the'lozal police. rioters of the locality as also others and were told not to appear before the Commission.

In view of the grievance made and the multiplying complaints, the Commission had 10 send its officers
from the Investigating Team to different areas wiih a view to generating confidence in the victims and

. the summoned deponents in the main.  On several occasions the Commmission had even 1o direct police

protection to be provided to persons who had been or were about to be examined before it.

The Commission indicated to the parties appearing before it that while it would look into all the
affidavits filed before it — whether the deponent was cross-examined or not — and if the deponent was
cross-examined, take the evidence also into ccnsideration, it suggested that some of the events covered
by-the affidavits ceuld also be investigated by its Agency. On behalf of the victims a good number of
incidents were given covering Dethi, Kanpur and Bokaro and the Investigating Agency made thorcugh
inquiries and submitted reports, the conclusions whereof have been supplied 10 the parties.  Reference
o the reports of the Investigating Agency is mace in another part of this Report.
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“{Is Camera Procecdings 7 ,

A The inquiry was a sensitive onc.  Wrong reports started featuring in the Press relating o the
~roceedings before the Commission.  When evidence came to be taken, tainted news appeared with
ércaler frequency. In periodicals writings appeared based upon wrong premiscs. Even though the
CJC was appearing before the Commission through Advecates. some of the persons connected with the
said Committee started giving wrong versions of events to the Press. The Commission was, therefore,

' obliged to- direct that the inguiry would be in camera and made an order requiring the Press not 1o
publish news and particulars about the proccedings before the Commission.  The Commission places
on record that the Press has mostly behaved responsibly and was co-operative after the direction was
given. The Hustrated Weekly published frem Rombay, however, exhibited scsnty regard to  the
direction and in its issue dated May 25—31, 1986, published a writc-up said to be by Hagi Malik. The
{ommission has noticed that the write-up is contrary to facts and is a total misrepresentation of the

sizuation.
VIl

(g) Citlzers’ Justice Committee notifies its withdrawal from the Inquiry

By March 31, 1986, substantial progress had been made in the inquiry by the Commission. So
far as the inquiry at Bokaro was concerned, it was over and written submissions remaincd to be filed.
Relating to the iuquiry at Kanpur, the Commission had finishcd examination of witnesses and the date
for oral arguments had been fixed. The last lap of oral evidence remaimed to be taken at Deihi and
that had been scheduled 1o begin from Apnil 2, 1986, At tlus juncture, on March 31, 1986, a long  state-
ment was filed in the office of the Commission by the CIC notifying its withdrawal from the proceedings
and in the statement the action was sought to be justified.  On April 1, 1986, Mr. Phoolka, counsel for
the Committee was sent for and when guestioned, disclosed that the Committee was his client and as
the client had asked him not to appear he had pothing more to say. Tt was explained to Mr. Phoolka
shat the Committec had taken a special responsibility to represent the riot victims and in cass the Com-
mission had previous notice of the Commitice’s non-co-operation, other steps could have been taken.
The inquiry was posted for the next day and there was hardly time 10 make any alternative arrangements.
iesides, it was also pointed out that most of the facts placed in the statement were either irrelevant or
were assumptions without foundation. Mr. Phoolka wanted tim= saying that he would contact the
senior counszl and requsst them 1o appear. They, however, did not turn up.  Next day Mr. Phoolka
cam:> with a letter from M. Justica Sikri who hippans to b2 the President of the Comnmittee wherein
it was stated :

“The Citizens’ Justicz Commitiee (CJC) has filed on 31-3-1986 ‘before the Honourabic
Commission its submissions partaining 1o the matter of the continuzd presence and pa rlicipation
of CIC in the proceedings of the Commission. ’

In view of the diszussion which took place yesterday beméen vour Lordship and Mr.
Phoolka, and out of deference to ceitain observations which you were pleased to make during
the coursz of the discussion, an emergent mocting of the CIC was convenad yesterday evening.

After deep and careful reconsideration of the matter, CIC regretfully finds itself unable to
alter its previous decision as sct out in the siid submissions.

CIC would like to make it absolutely clear that its decision and the said submissions filed
by it do not in any manncr imiply Iack of personal confidenc: in your Lordship or any mark of
disrespect for the Commission.

For reasons already stated in the said submissions CIC is of the view that the procedure
adopted and followed by the Commission has rendered its continued presence and participation

ineffective and pointless.”

Full text of the letter is at Appendix ‘1" in Vol. II.

It is a fact that the CJIC was the premier group representing the victims at Delhi.  Its sudden
withdrawal from the procecdings, particularly when the inguiry had been posted on April 2, 1986 did
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create some amount of embarrassment in the working of the Commission.  The Commission places on
record its disapproval of the manner in which: €JC withdrew frem the proceedings. Having persuaded
the Commission to acsspt the position that it was a public spirited organisation. cousisting of socially
oriented and highly placed citizens capable of eflectively representing the viciims and their cause the
Committec had takcn upon itszif the oncrous duty of a trustee and when it suddenly backed out it did
faii to discharge the responsibility it had voluntarily undertaken. Surprisingly. Mr. Turkunde thought
it appropriate to justify the stand of the Commitice by going to the Pross and made a stitement oii te

. basis of which there appeared a publication in 6ne of the fortnighth magazines soon after the withdrawal

from the proc:edings. The Commission did not consider 1t appropriate to join issue through the Press.
The Conumittee perhaps did not want the situation to become quict and disclosed materials not Beine
facts 1o form th2 basis of a write-up 1n yet another magazine — this time a wackiv.  Having withdr‘aw;
from the proczedings, the Conumitice should not have helped a debate 1o be riised in the Press. The
Press was aware of the position. that the procecdings were in camera - and publication was not to be
made. When the rmttu was before the Commission and the Report wos yet 10 be  drawn up, the
magazine shouid not have made the publication prompting to the Commission what it should do. In
the opinion of the Commission, this is an irresponsible act.

The DSGMC which was aiready appearing before the Commission started representing the vietims
during the remainder of the proceedings.

X

(hy Examination of persons other than depoaents

The Commission examined soms of the public officers — civil as also  defcnce personnel — who
held offices in the administrative hierarchy during the riots. In respect of the inquiry at-Delhi the
following were cxamined : .

Sari P. G. Gavai former Lt. Governor (up to 3-11-34),
Shri M. M. K. Wail former Lt Governor (from 4-11-84).
Shri S. C. Tandon, former Commissioner of Police.

Shri Ved Marwah, present Commissioner of Police

Shri Gautam Kaul. Addl. Commissioner of Police. .
Shri H. C. Jarav. former Add]l. Commissioner of Police.
Shri O. P. Yudav, former SHO, Nizamuddin Police Stavon.
Shrt R. S, Sethi, former Distriet Magistrate.

Gen. AL S, Vaidva. former Chief of Army Staff.

Ma;. Gen. J S, Jamwal, GOC. Delhi Area.

Maj. LS. Sandhu of the Sikh Light Infantry.

— O MD 0D g N T R L T —
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Shrt P. V. Narasimhi Rae, then the Minister of Home Affairs of ihe Central Government was
isked 10 explain ceridin aspects rejevant {o the mngquiry.  DirectorGenéral of Doordarshan and Director-
General of All India Radio also appeared before the Commission pursuant to directions made by it
Lt. Gen. J. S. Aurora (Retd.) appeared before the Commission when requssted and filed a written state-
ment which has been kept on record and tiken mto consideration.

In regard 1o the inquiry at Kanpur, Brig. R. K. Kohli, the then Station Commander of Kanpur,
Shri Brijendra, a member of the Indian Adminstrative Service and then Distt. Magistrate of Kanpur,
Shri Nirmalendo Basu, Works Manager at the Smoall Arms Factory at Kanpur. Shr D. K. Gupta, then
City Magistrate of Kanpur. und Capt. Barcth of the Maratha Light Tnfantry on dwy at Kanpur during
the riots, were exantined.

The Commission was asked to permit cross-examination of these witnesses On more than one
cccasion but it was of the view that it would not be expadient 10 aliow cross-examination.  The request
has. therefore. not been entertained.

The Cormunission visited certain affected areas and a Relief Camp at Dethi without any formal
program. It madc & visit to Panki Railway Station in Kanpur area. It also made a local inspection
of an arca within Dashmesh \Ta"ar at Bokaro. A memorandum of local inspection was drawn up
which is availabic in Vol [T at p. 2. Appendix 2.
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DELHI

{a) Genoeral

1n 1912 the province of Delhi was carved out and was placed in the administrative charge of a Chiefl
Commissioner.  In 1952 Dclhi became a Part *C State and with eftfect from November 1, 1936, by the
Seventh Amendment Act of the Constitution, Delhi became a Union Territory und came to be adminis-
“tered by the President through an Administriator appointed under sub-Article (1) of Article 239 of the
Constitntion—initially designated as Chief Commissioner and later Licutenant Governor.  Uunder
Article 239A Parliament has authority by law to create, for certain Union Territories, a body to function
as its lezislaturc but Delhi is not covered and for its administrauion, Parliament has enacied the Delhi
Administration Act, 1966, under which detailed provisions have becn made for the carrying on of
the administration. Section 27(3) of the Delhi Administration Act provides :

“The functions of the Administrator with respect to law and order in Delhi, including or-
ganisation and discipline of the police force and with respect to such other matters as the President
may from tune to time speeify in this behalf, shall be exercised by him in his discretion™.

Section 30 of the Act further provides :

“Nowwithstanding any thing 1 the Act, the Administrator and the Members ¢f the Executive
Council shall be under the general control of and comply with such particular direction, if any,
as may from time to time be given by the President.”

In sonsonance with the provisions of the Act. Rules of Business have been framsd. Maintenance of law
and order subject 10 the control of the Central Government is thus a matter vested in the Lt. Governor

10 be excrcised 1 his discretion.

On October 31, 1984, Shri P.G. Gavaiwas the Lt. Governor.  Dethi has a Commissioncr of Police
as the head of the police establishment and at the relevant time Shri §.C. Tandon, IPS, held that post.
The Union Territory has a large chunk of urbanised area under mnnicipal administration and the remain-
ing part whick is rural is divided intc two tchsils—Delhi and Mehrouli.  The entirc Union Terrfiory is
one revenug disteict in charge of a Disirict Magistrate. By 1984, the Union Territory had been divided
mto five police districts, each being called a Range in charge of a Deputy Inspector General of Police
(later, Addl. Commissioner of Police). For administrative convenicnee, an officer of the rank of Addl.
District Magistrate came to be in charge of each of these five districts (now six—with New Delhi having
become a separate unit).  In October/November 1984, Shri R.S. Scthi. a member of the Ind’an Adminis-
trative Service, was the District Magistrate.

There are several Addl. Commissionars of Police earmarked for specific purposes such as Adminis-
tration, Headguarters, Rangz, etc.  Below the Depury Commissioner of Police in every Range there
are Asstt. Commissionees of Police. The Union Territory of Delhi was then divided into 63 Police
Stations. Each police staiion 15 in charge of a Station House Officer of the rank of Inspector and
1o every such police station are attached a number of Sub-Inspzctors, - Asstt. Sub-Inspuoctors. Head
Constables and Constables.

From the census figures of 1941 it appears that the Union Territory had a population of 9,17,939
while the city of Delhi had a population of 6,95,686. There was a rapid escalation in the papulation
following partition of India and independence. The census figures of 1951, 1261, 1971 and 1981 are
given below :

Year Urban Rural
1951 . . . . 14,47,134 3,06,938
1961 . . . . 23,59,408 2,99,204
1571 . .. . 35,47,023 4,18,6175

57,68.200 4,52,200

1981

€
€
&
€
€

) ;oo

M, S &

LT A B o T T

D O 6 oo

D0

CEI I I

'

il
e

o




% @& % e

e

Al

2 & B ®

9

Tha Sikh poputation in D:lhi suidenly increased following the partition of the country and as per
the 1981 cansus, the Sikh population of Delhi was 3,93,921 which works out to 6.337; of the total popu-
lation of Delhi. The urban area has in recent years greatly spread out.  Many outlying villages have
come into the urban belt. Though there has been a swifi rise in the population as also in the territorial
belt and with urbanisation, criminal activity has increased and need for police control has also become
more and more pressing. commensurate expansion ef the police is said 1¢ have not taken place.

There exists acute probiem of residential accommodation within the urban area though with deve-
lopment activity and anxisty to build more of accommodation the city’s urban canvas has expanded and
lots of new accommodation have been and are coming up.  Since building activity is not commensurate,
cven peoople beloaging to the middle incoms groups do not find residential accommodation for them-
selves. Thousands of pcuple come to D:lhi ia search of employm:nt. The acute shortage of accom-
modation has led to the appearance of jhuggis in-and around all possible places. Notwithstanding
conmstant vigil exercised by the Delhi Developmeant Authority as also the Municipal Corpotation, un-
authorisad constructions come up cvery now and then and jhuggis in dus course get regularised as
authoriszd colonies. The existenzz of jhuggis with their poverty striken and underted people in close
proximity of multi-storevad modern fashionable buildings with the rich section of the socicty often
gives rise 10 pacuilar problems. Incompatibility in the living process between the two classes of people
brings about in the poor ssction a sense of frustration and genzrates a sense of hatred as also a lust for
the property of the well-to-do.  In recant years respect for human hfe has been fast vanishing. Fear
of. and regard for, law are also reducad. Moral convictions have porished.  There is. therefore, anxiety
to avail every opportuaity by the jhuggi dwellers to cut the rich to size. )

For more than a dezade there has b2 consistent demand for augm:niing the police force of Delhi.
When the Delhi Police Act. 1978, was enacted to build up a vitalised police force the demand was examined
in departm=ntal resords and a good number of conferences and debated as a basic issue.  There was.
however. no positive outcoms of these 2xercises.

o recent veurs, in and around Decthi, there has been sizeable growth of industrial activity.  Indus-
trialisition has brouznht aboat incres: of indastrial labour and with ithas com: more of criminal activity.
The criminal pop:liation within D:ihi has also b2z2n oa the insreass day by day. - Hardly a day passes
frez from criminil incidents. Broad daylight looting of Banks. killing of m2n. stabbing of persons,

- burning of bridzs, commission of suizides and a widz range of other criminal acuvities appear to have
. :b2zom: a part of the daily normal routinz of life in this region.  There used 1o be regular police beats

_which o az:da 1t of prossure of work have bzen abandoned for soms time.

(b) Incidents
(1} October 31, 1984

Around 9.20 am.. two Sikh s=cunty guxrds fired upoen Prime Minister Smt. Indira Gandhi at
I Safdarjang Road, har offizial residenze. S was hurriedly removed to the Al India Institute of
Madical Sziencas for madical attentioa.  This information spread like wild fire.  Thousands of residents
of Dalhi staried gathering at the AIIMS. By the time the Commissioner of Police reached the AIIMS
a1"10.05 a.m.. the crowd was swelling up on the Aurobindo Marg outside AIIMS and the South District
Police under the Deputy Commissioner of Polics had become busy making arrangements 1o keep the
AIIMS Complexclear and free. By { p.m. thecrowd at the AIIMS had swelled up to well above 30,000.
The exact condition of Smit. Gandhi was not bzing disclosed to the mob which was gradually becoming
im7atierit. By the afiernooa the newspapars. however, started publicising that Smt. Gandhi had
succdfmbad 10 her injuries and doctors had failad to resuscitate her to life.  CJC asked for production of
ceriain newspapers which the Commission direcied to be called for. References to some of them are
made here. The Indian Express Editor has informed the Commission in answer to an  interrogatory
suggested by CIC :

“The second Special Supplemant was issued around | or 1.15 P.M. under the banner heading -
Mrs. Gandhi assassinoted.” '

The Hindustan Times brought about a Special Supplement with the headline “Indira Gandhi is dead™.




10
The Statesman in answer (o the imcrrogaiory ha‘s rcp!idcd :
© “*Second edition at about 1.45 p.m.—Mrs. Gandhi was no more, it is feared. ™
A Special edition was brought out at about 3.15 p.m. announcing of Smi. Gandhi's assassination.

Between 2 and 3 in the afternoon sporadic incidents staried taking place.  Inmially these were con-

‘Gned to shouting of siogans against the Sikhs calling them as traitors, pulling out Sikh passengers from

buscs and manhandling them. Additional Commissioner of Police Jatav says, by 2.30 p.m. he reczived
information of trouble in Scuth Delhi of pelting of stones and assault on Sikhs.

Police Commissioner Tandon has stated that around 12.30 p.m. he had becn called to the Prime
Minister's residence” by M/s. Fotedar and V.S. Tripathi. There the Lt. Governor was also present. He
was advised to look after the security and to keep the roads around the Prime Minister’s residence clear.
‘At that point of time it was felt that the body of the Prime Minister would be brought from the AIIMS
10 her residence.  Around 4 p.m. Police Commissioner Tandon was told that there would be dclay in
release of the body.  Shri Rajiv Gandhi was then away in West Bengal and appears to have returned to
Delhi in the later half of the afternoon. By about 5.30 p.m. the President who was away from India
returned and straight drove to the AIIMS from Palam. The Presidential cavalcade appears {o have

heen attacked by some persons out of the angry mob still waiting at the AIiMS and some of the vehicles

were damaged by throw of stones. -Around that time trouble started in Jorbagh and INA Market areas.
Vehicles of Sikhs started being stopped and their turbans were removed and set on fire. By the evening
time mobs coliected at s2veral places had started stopping transport vehicles as also scooters, motor-
cycles and cars either driven by Sikhs or in which Sikhs were found travelling. The initial shout of
condemnation of Sikhs began to take a serious turn.  Somez of the mobs were only of hooediums; others
were groups of people of different ages. By the evening from different areas several reports of taxis and

transport vehicles of Sikhs being set on fire started pouring in.
It is a fact that the Press Trust of India had sent the following message at 10.54 hours on that
day :
“Among the assailants were twwo Sikhs and one clean shaven Sikh, unofficial reports said.”

When in the evening news of her death was published, the fact that assailants were Sikh guards was slated-. )

During the night the crowds increased and started moving {rocm place to place. The houses owned/
occupied by Sikhs were identified.  Free and cpen threats were administered to members of that com-
munity wherever they were found. Several incidents of brutal physical assault took place,

Soon after the eccurrence in the morning the Home Sceretary had issuéd wireless messages to all
the States, including the Dethi Adminisiration, alerting them against apprehended treuble. On the
basis of such alert, Additional Commissioner of Policg, Shri R.K. Ohri, had senl out wireless messages
to all Distt. Dzputy Commissioners of Policz to the following effect

“You are advised to intensify patrolling and strengthen police presence in communally
sensitive areas. especially near Gurudwaras, Temples, Mosques, etc. and keep a sharp lock out
for mischief mongers. Special attention may also bz paid to the safety of vital installations.
Necessary steps may be taken to curb any rumour-mongering and effective action taken apainst
those spreading rumours. Similarly, watch may be kept on known bad characters and goondas.
All Distt. DCPs may also maintain ia reserve for meeting any unforeseen situation.”

The then Home Szcretary, Shri M.M.K. Wali has told the Commission that between 11 and
11.30 a.m. of that day he had talked to the Lt. Governor as also the Commissioner of Police to ensure
that the situation should be watched with great care and caution. It appears from his evidence that the
Home Minister, the Cabinet Sacretary and the Principal Secretary to the Prime Minister were away from
Deihi at that time. Thesz people returned to the capital between 3 and 3.30 p.m.  This statement of the

then Home Secretary has been supported by Lt. Governor Gaval.

o
< 3
&4

€ %

e
i

g,
AR

g,
b

@ o

o,
o

S
&

@

it

@

@

S e o oo

i
W

@

2
i




D @ 8

29 88 2 @

flae
R

o

#i)
&

&

b

I

Police Commissioner Tandon has stated that in his opinion prohibitory orders under section 144,
Cr. P.C. were adequate to meet the situation as it prevailed on October 31, 1984, and he, thercfore, did
not take any othcr action excepting promuigation of prohibitory orders and asking for deployment of
the police force to enforce it. There were as many as 119 incidents on October 31, 1984, to which reference
has been made before the Commission.  These happened in different parts of Delhiand were of the nature
and pattern alrcady indicatcd. Scveral affidavits filed before the Commission refer to these incidents.
For instance, a reference to the affidavit of Smt. Ravinder Kaur (no. 2778) goes to show that her husband
who was drwmn truck No. 755 was killed in Shiahdara area durmg the night of October 31, 1984. The
death certificate appzended to the affidavit shows that the killing took place near a petrol pump in Bhajan-
pura area in the early morning hours of November ], 1984. This clearly indicates that kﬂhng of people
had started during the night of October 31, 1984, as found by the Commission.

From the evidence produced it appears that 13 Gurudwaras were attacked on 31st October, being
Shri Guru Singh Sabha Gurndwara at Naraina, the Gurudwara at Sagarpur, Shri Guru Singh Sabha
Gurudwara at Lajpat Nagar, the Guradwara at Sheikh Sarai, the Gurudwara at Defence . Colony, the
Gurudwara at Gandhi Nagar, Kalgidhar Singh Sabha Gurudwara at R.K. Puram; Shri Guru Singh
Sabha Gurudwara at R.K. Puram, Shri Guru Singh Sabha Gurudwara at Sarojini Nagar, Shri Guru-Singh
‘Sabha Gurudwara at Lodhi Colony, Baba Budha Singh Gurudwara at Prem Nagar and- Gurudwara Sikh
Sangat at Green Park Extension, South P:lhi. The material on record show» that. attack on Lhese
Gurudwaras started by sunset time and continued till about 11 p.m.

These incidents of October 31, 1984, appaar to have been by way of involuntary reaction of a‘deep
senss of grief, anzuish and hatred for the assassins. Thare can be no scope to contend, ,and much less
to accept. that at the initial stage on October 31, 1984, the violence that took place was organised.
October 31, 1934, began with a usual autumn morning and no one had any reason to apprehend that
such an ugly and unfortunate incident would take place. The kiiling came as a boit from the biue and
took evervone unawares. Smt. Gandhi's body had been received at the AIIMS and the fact that she
was dead had not beendisclosed. Though some people knew that she was dead, most of the population
living in different areas had not com: to know of the fact of death till evening. It is in such a back-
groud that the initial incidents started taking place. These, therefore, appear to the Commission to be
spontancous reaction of the people to the then prevailing situation at the commsncement but as the
policz did-not attend to the situation and failed to make a proper assessment of what was brewing, what
begam as an innosant reaction to Smt. Ganlhi's assassination developad into ons of the darkest tragedies
Hal ind'ependem- India’s history. ' A

In the ‘Evening News of the Hindustan Txmes of the 3lst, the situation of that morning was thus
described - _
- “DELHI PEOPLE DAZED
People 1n the capitalv-hear'd in shocked disbelief news of the attempt on Prime Minister
Indira Gandhi’s life here this moming.
People from ali walks of life were dazed on hearing that Mrs. Gandhi had been shot at and
rushed to AIIMS for surgery.”

I the, November 1, 1984, issue of the Indian Express the situation on 31st October was reported thus :

“GLOOM DESCENDS ON CAPITAL

A pzll of gloom descended on the capital as news about the shots fired at Indira Gandhi
sprcad throughout the city .

o=y oo+ At the offices of the D\.]hl Pradesh Congress (I) Committee on Kali Bari Marg and the Delh;
¢ <+ Pradesh Youth Congress (1) office on the Talkatora Road downcast workers sat on the lawns.
The All India Congress (I) Committee office. on Akbar Road was placed under close vuard and

-all visitors were being.screenad closely.

On Bazhadur Shah Zafar Marg. where most newspaper offiées aré located, one could see
people wiping tears on reading this. Simultancously the capi tal was overtaken with grief.
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Many, however; still could oot believe this. ‘How is it possible 7 asked an elderly lady,
‘only yesterday Indira Gandhi was in Orissa, I s5aw her on the television addressing the jawens’.

But as the sun set and darkness descended on the city,I a pall of gloem covered the city and
perhaps the country completely. People now began 1o believe that Indira Gandhi was dead.””

The same newspaper carried the following news dated 31-10-1984 :

“The Government latc on Wednesday night alerted the Army and called out the Border
Security Force and the Central Reserve Police Force as the Jocal police failed to control the wide-
spread rioting and arson in different parts of the capital following the assassination of Indira

Gandhi.

The main targets of the rioting mobs were Sikhs, their property, vehicles and places of
worship. Curfew was imposed in Agartala, Jammu and Jabalpur while the Army was called
_out in Apartala and Calcutta as angry crowds went on the rampage in several parts of the country
protesting against Indira Gandhi’s assassination. Incidents of violence were reported from
parts of Tripura, Bihar, Orissa, West Benga] Uttar Pradesh, Jammu and Kashmir and Madhya
Pradesh, reports P.T.1. .

At least 30 Sikhs were admitted to various hospitals in the city (Dzlhi). Quite a few have
been admitted to the AH India Institute of Medica! Sciences alone till 10 p.m. on Wednesday

{313t October). 7 A .

Angry mobs went about setting fire to property belonging to Sikhs, without any let or
hindrance from the policz. They set alight two Gurudwaras in South Delhi, the premises of
four transport companies and two timber stores in the walled city,

At least 50 vehicles including trucks, cars, buses, scooters, rickshaw-scooters and motos-
cycles were set on fire in different parts of the city. The maximum damage to vehicles was
done in Safdarjang airport area, Laxmibai Nagar and Vinay Nagar area.

Between 6 and 10 p.m. between the Prime Minister’s house on Safdarjang Road and AIIMS
a vehicle was seen burning every 50 yards. The police had to delay taking the body from the
hospital because of the burnt out vehicles enroute 1, Safdarjang Road. Around 10.30 p.m.
two trucks were ablaze at the Ring Road Crossing near Kamal Cinema. ‘We cannot deal
with the situation of this nature’, said Mr. Gautam Kaul, Addl. Commissioner of Police, New
Delhi, outside the ATIMS. ... . .. A mail van driven by a Sikh was also burnt near Jorbagh-
Safdarjang airport crossing sometime around S p.m. {ts burnt out shell was hurriedly removed
to enable the pacsage of the guncamage carrying Indira Gandhi's body.

The Delhi fire dcpartment was hard put to combat the spurt of fires in the city. A fire
spokcsman late in the evening (of the 31st) said that they were incapable of bandling the situation
in the city and perforee had to let fires rage in the capital.

Mobs of youngmen armed with steel rods-and lathis stopped vehicles all over the city
bragging that they had set many vehicles and places of worship on fire.

fmpctent policemen stood at odd corners lookhg on helplessly as mobs went amuck in
the walled city setting umber markets and trucks on ﬁre Shops belonging to Sikhs were in-
d 1scr1m1nate1y looted . . -

Thss is a long extract of the news itern from the Indian Express dated November 1, 1984, Indis-
putably the contents were printed in course of the night of the 31st October and this newspaper was avail-

- zble for sale/distribution by early morning of November 1, 1984. CJC called for copies of this news-
<~ . paper from 1-11-84 to 7-11-84 and upon orders by the Comrmssmn thc managcment produced them
“ 'a!ong ‘isqth their “letter dated 18-11-1985. :
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The riews item was a contemporaneous publication and chances of motivated reporting would not
be there. CJC with the obvious intention of relying on the news cdvera'.ge called for these issues of the
paper. The news shows in clearest terms that rioting in the proper sense had started in a very big way
in several parts of the city on the 3!st evening and except for k_ill'ipg which came into the process from
i-11-1984, every other form of attack on Sikhs had begun. The massive scale on which the operation
had started so soon after the fact of death was circulated is clearly indicative of the fact thatit was the
spoataneous reaction of the people at large. The short span of time that intervened would not have
permitted scope for any orgamising to be done. The gloom that had spread and affected the Congress-
menin particular would not have permitted any such organisation to be handled. The reaction appears
to have come as a flutter and sparked everywhere in a similar pattern. It-was not confined to States
where Congress (1) was in power. West Bengal and Tripura where C.P-(M) led governments were in
office got affected too. The police was impotent from the very beginning has been clearly indicated.
Their leadership was fuil of doubts about their capacity is also apparent. These facts have to be kept
in view for drawing of appropriate conclusions at relevaat places.

(i} November 1, 1984 :

Qn the previous day, apart from proclaiming prohibitory order under s. 144, Cr. P.C. and directing
the police to be on the alert and take such steps to meet the situation as may be necessary, no effective
steps had been taken in the various localities where trouble had either started or was brewing or was
likely to happen. ~ The inaction of the police at the early stage gave a general impression that it was not
going to interfere with the mob activities. In the early morning of November 1, 1984, mobs were found
on the streets prepared to undertake looting, arson, assault and even kill. The Commission has already
indicated that on October 31, 1984, itself, operation had been undertaken to identify houses owned or
occupied by Sikhs. The mobs that operated oo November 1, 1984, were mostly from the lower strata
of soctety coming from the jhuggis and the outlying villages. There were, however, several Instances
where people of the middle class as also some belonging to the richer section of the society did participate
andevenled the mobs. Inmany of the affidavits of the victims where the method and modality zdopted
by-the mobs have been described, it has been clearly stated that there was a difference in the pattern of
the operations carried in the morning and later ia the day. In the morniog hours crowds moved out
and ordinarily threatened or terrorised the Sikh population in different areas, did small scale looting
and even-caused assaults. When these illegal activities were carrjed on by the mobs in certain areas
there was resistance from the side of the Sikhs, particularly were they were of a sizeable number . The
simation in many areas, therefore, became tense and provocative. In some areas while confrontation

~ of this typé proceeded and members of the Sikh community were beaten up, there had been casual retal-

liation.  Assauit on non-Sikh rioters inflicted by way of exercise of the right of self-defence was made

‘an jssue and was utilised to provoke themobs against the Sikhs. From early morning a rumour was
‘spread throughout Delhito the effect that the Sikhshad peisoned the drinking water, of Delht.  Obviously

this had been done by the miscreants 1o create further bias and prejudice agaimst the Sikhs and create
apathy in the minds of the psople against Sikhs. From that morning the miscreants also started spread-
ing another rumour that every train which came from Punjab side carried dozens of dead bodies of non-
Sikhs. This was an out and ouf lie but was intended to create the necessary panic and bring sbout the
proper mood in the people constituting the mobs to react against the -Sikhs. Rumour is one of the
cheapest tools in the hands of the trouble makers either to boost or demoralise and the gangsters had
resorted to such methods. :

Later in the day on November I, 1984, the riotous mobs followed almost a uniform patiern every-
where. They came well armed with iron rods, crow-bars, kerosene in containers, inflammable powder,
firearms, apart from lathis and other dangerous weapons. In some areas the kerosene stockists were
made to supply kerosene. The afternooan operations became dreadful; the houses occupied by Sikhs
were initially looted, the left over material which was either not considered useful for looting or was
difficult to be removed was.set on fire. Qrdinarily, every male Sikh found in the house or in the locality
was beaten to death. Wherever the gates of the compounds were closed or the doors were locked from
within, with iron rods and crow-bars as also by use of force these were broken open.  The riotous crowd
foliowed the pattern of burning all the Sikhs who were either kiled or were in the process of.dying as a
resuit of fatal assault and injuries. This obvicusly was so done 19 leave no trace.and to make: sure that
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po one that had been mjured survived. The Commission has come across instances where ladies who
ran to the rescuc of their hubsands or their ¢lose male relations were also brutaliy assaulted and in some
cases were even thrown into the fire in which the men-folk were already teing burnt.

November 1, 1984, appears to have been the worst day during the riots.

When the incidents happened in the early part of the day within a few kilometres from the Police
Healquacters and in areas close to the administrative establishments, these ingidents had not impressed
the machinzcy that the situation had gone out of control.  The Lt. Governor came to Teenmurti Bhavan
around 6.35 a.m. where the dead body of the Jate Prime Minister was lyingin state.  After making floral

offering he looked for the Police Commissionzr and when they met, he advised that the Police Commis-
sionerinstead of hanging around Teenmurti Bhavan should move outasthere wasapprehension of trouble.
When the Lt. Governor suggested that the Army could be called immediately, the Commissioner of
Police was of the view that he should first take a round, form his own opinion and then only on the basis
of his ass2ssmant the dezision for calling in the Army should bz taken  Around 10 a.m. the Police
Commissioner informed the Lt. Governor on telephone that the situation was going from bad to worse
and that Army help should be asked for. When the Lt. Governor contacted the GOC, Delhi Area,

according to the Lt. Governor the GOC replied that he had already been alerted but before the Army
could move in he wanted a meeting with the Lt. Governor. The meeting took place around 1 p.m.

The GOC was of the view that the number of troops available with him could operate only in two con-
tiguous arcas. The Army was ultimately asked to move into South and Central Dethi and it appears
that jt had become operational by the evening.  Police Commissioner Tandon in his statement has also
acgepted the position that around 10 a.m. after returning to the Police Headquarters he was of the view
that the situation had become worse in several parts of the city.  Addl Commissioner Jatav has stated
that until the evening of November 1 he had no occasion to fecl that the situation was going out of

control.

There was no proper assessment by the police of the grave situation in the city. The Commission
is satisfied from the material placed on record that on November 1, the law and order situation in Dethi
had beenleftinthe handsof the riotous mobs and the police, as will be presenty discussed, failed 1o
discharge its duty of maintaining law and order.

1t is during that night that one of the greatest tragedies of the riot period took place in the Triiok-
puri area. Trilokpuri is a part of Kalyanpuri Police Station.  Block 32 of Trilokpuri was being in- -
habited by Labana Sikhs mostly belonging to the poorer section of society. In the eralier part of the
day on November 1, an attempt was made 1o set the Gurudwara ia Block 32 on fire but this attempt had
been repzlled by the local Sikb population. In the stone throwing that followed, a local mosque was
somewhat damaged.  In the afternoon the Station House Officer along with a police party had visited
the area but made no prop2r appcaisemant of the situation nor did he attempt to normalise the situation
by easing the tznsion. One Head Constable with two other police constables had been given duty from
8 am. til} § p.m.that day but they withdrew from the area by 3 p.m. Trilokpuri bad no light that night.
Under the covar of darkness the 1iotous mob fejl upon the Sikh community 2nd almost wiped out G\’El'\'-
on=. 95 deadbodiss were recovered from the locality. The few that survived were those who had n;n
away under the cover of darknzssand had taken shelter inhuts of farm iabourers from Bihar after shav-
ing off their hair and beards.

On November I, 1984, in several other areas of the ¢ity hundreds of crimes were perpetrated by
riotous maobs. Reference to 399 incidents of various citegories has been made in the affidavits and
evidence placed bzfore the Commission.  As already pointed out, this was the worst day during the
period of rioting. Three-fourths of the persons kiiled seemn to have perished on this day alone in the
hands of the rioters. There is clear evidence that a common pattern had been foliowed by big crowds.
Curfew had been clamped in the afiernoon.  This power was avajlable to be exercised by the Commis-
sioner of Police.  He stated that ininally he did not think curfew to be necessary butlater he instructed
the Deputy Commissioners of Police to impose curfew when on their own assessment they were satis-
fied that the situation warranted it. There is clear material on record by way of admission of senior
police officers in their evidence that cuifew was not effective inasmuch as it could not be strictly en-
forced. Notwithsta inding imposition of curfew, in the absence of any strict enforcement the crowds
moved and operated asfreely as before when there was no curfew.
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Throughout the night of November 1. 1984, the riotous mobs carried on their operations. The
Army had not become very effective at the initial stages as it required magisterial orders for reso; ling to
firing; in the absence of proper guidance by officers used to the locatities it had operational inconvenience:
the mob taking advantage of the night and darkness tn several areas used to keep away {rom the main
roads and wider lancs as and when Army vebicles approached and once the vehicles moved away they
collected to carry on then operations again.

In the cvening the Prime Minisier and a number of oppesitien leuders made 4 joiry appeal 1o the
nrople for rastoration of snmity and thewr apperl frer alia, stated

UNation'~ uniy and integrity must be safecuarded at all costs and this 1y the foremost
resp onsibiiity of every citizen. .. To subject Sikhs as a whole to violence and indignity for what
a few mizzuided parsons have done, hewever heinous their crime, is most irrutlional and up-
becoming of cur heritage of tolkrance, This madness must stop. ... From the very begiming
Sikm have boen an insepiarable part of Infia and the Stkh community has plaved a glorious rol:)
in the frecdom strugele and in the building vp of indepzndent India.

(ifi) November 2, 1984

As already noucsd, towarts the eveningz of November 1 the Army had moved into two Districts,
nam-ly, Cenrrad and South. One full Brigade reached Delhi at 6 a.m. on Nevembar 2 1984, amther.
at §am aad third onz at 9 aam. the fourth Brigade came at 115 p.m. and the fifth arcund 2.30 p.m.
Thz.e five Brizntes had coms from Meorut. Roorkee. Shahjahanpar, Alwar and Punjib respectively,
and easy Brizide had atleast 2,000 soldiers. By eveninz of November 2, 1984, the Army had moved
into almoast evary arex of Dethe The presence of Army and regular pasrolling mads o diffcult for the
rintous mob. 10 freely oprrate but until evening there had been a lot of eriminal activity carned on in
almiast ev 2y P cof Deine Tiae
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mitial dufieubty of fack of Magistrates was remoevad by providing more

a2 1o the Army to fire in setf-defenc: or when mob committing arson,
lroung or resoruing 1o Killing was notcxd. Wuh the arrival of adequate force and  the Army  movine
about in .111’11 stevery ared. the siuation showed signs of ymprovement. In the fster part of the day on
November I, 1934, a group of Members of Parhament had meat the Prime Minister at his resigdence.
Lt Goveranr Gavai alss p*riicipi ad in the meeting. Nowwithstanting the availabiiity of the Army
and round the clock movement of columns of it in affecied areas, many incidents occurred during the

day.

The Primz Mintster deseribed the communal frenzy sweeping the country following the asiassina-
o dc disgraceful.  Ino2n unieheduled bref broadedst to the naven he said -

“Whtle hunireds of miflions of Indians are mourning the tragic’ oy of their beloved leader.
som: pzople are casting a sluron der memory by induleing in acts of hared and viclence. Dis-
graceful incidents of arson. loot and murder have taken place. This must step forthwith.  The
Go\un'n nt will ensure the safery of life and proparty of every citizen irrespective of his caste.
creed or religion,

Indira Gandiy gave her tre so thita united Incma shoul! Bve ans prosper. Anvthing that
creates ddivision bowween biotfier and brotfrer eomes on th2 wav of navont! unnty.  This violenc:
is only helping the subversve forees o achieve their en’s. Communal madnss will destroy
gs. 1t owill destroy evervihing that tndia siandis {or. As Prime Minister of India I cannot and
will not allow this. Tomorrow the mor@al remans of Intira Gandhi will be consigned 1o
sacred flames.  She had said. "Do not shed blood.  Shed hatred’. Lot this guide us.”

The Prima \{=:1:;t a-:u;' some of the affected areas baiween | am, and 3.30 3. m. 10 g2t a fira hand
DUS

cioNavembe I, ~hdfuns of no vicons o Rebed Camp: had stired m e -mall

soporancn had beemooptnn s By Nowvembor 2 several Relief Camps had

besn ot up and with the waistance of the Arma. pober and the velfuniary orgenistens as olo the endl
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population the rescuing of riot victims continued and thousands of people from different areas came &
to lifein diffcrent Relief Camps.  With the Army units moving about, the morale of the victims started -
showing signs of improvem:nt and somz of the Sikhs who had run away from their houses for life started <
coming back to their own houses wherz they found all the proparty had been looted or removed and the &
houses had been set on fire. Most of the p2ople lived in Camps for another 5-6 days and then started B

_retarning. From certain arcas like Trilokpuri where mass killings had taken place the wicows were not &
prepired to return to those areas and preferred to live o Redief Camps. . Their babitation and living &
became a problem.. By the cvening of November 3, 1934, there was further improvement in the
situation. : P

&

(c) Consideration of affidavits

Briof referenc: may b> made to som: of the affi lavits relating to incidents of damage to Gurudwaras,
kiling, arson, looting and assault, and allegations of miscellancous nature. The Commission had indi-
cated on more than one occasion during the proceedings to counsel and parties that the manner of - &
appreciating evidence collected by it would not be as done in a criminal trial and every detail in every
affidavit was not to be taken into account to find out whether there was any contradiction and on that
acsount to discard affidavits. The Commission was,interested in eollecting evidenoe 1o accertain the &
pittern of the occurrences and for that purpose to havs a general view of acceptable material on record.

It is proposed to refer to soms of the affidavits selating to the incidents for the aforesaid purpose. &
S. Amrik Singh (no. 2301) was living in West Patel Nagar (Ceatral Distt.). In his affidavit he has -
indicated : &
“After that the mob procizzded to Gurudwara and they threw the holy book outside, kicked ©
and urinited upon these books. The up:rooted Nishan Saheb (religious flag of Sikhs) and looted &
the money-chest.” .
It was an inzident of November 1, 1984, S. Angal Singh (no. 2675) of Rohtak Road (North Delhi) has &
als> referred to en ncident of November |, 1934, with referensz to the Gurudwara of his Iocality. He T
has stated : » ' 8
“W:saw that som: perions were ramsacking the Garudwara and some were setting it on &
fira. About 8-9 individuals went to save the Gurudwara. When we reached there we saw &
that the crowd numbzred about 703/500 and bzfore we reached the Gurudwara, they had alreacy h
set the Guru Grauth Sahib ani the “Palki Sahib” on fire. And they had rapsacked the G
Gurudwara alse.” ' v &
S. Ajit Sinzh (nd. 2593}, residing at Gezta Colony of Krishna Nagar Police Station (East Distt.), has &
raferced to the Derababa Jai Sinzh Garudwira.  Acsording to him the mob burnt the Gurudwara as '
a result of waich the entire plac: was damagsd. S Charanjit Singh (no. 2282) was resicing in Lajpat &
Nagar (South Distt.). On Novemb:r |, 1984, according to him, “‘at about 10 a.m. a violent mob came &
to the Guruliwara from the Ring Road side. 1 was-at home and was told all about it by Sewadar S. =
Mehel Sinzh who alonz with his family ant the Granthi S. Tarsem Singh was residing in the rzoms of &
the Gurudwara. There was noise out<ide the Gurudwara. Hearing this noise the Sewadar and the &
Granthi came out but they were reguzsted by the police to go insice and were told that the pelice would
protest the Garudwara as also them. When they went inside their rcoms .the mob comprising of 1200 &
to 1500 cam=> near and started throwing stones. The mob was armed with patrol cans, sariyas, lathis .

etc. They collected the durries and the mob put them on fire. They went upstairs in the main hall
and broke thz glass door. They also burnt the holy books, Guru Granth Sahib and threw some of &
them. They closed the door of the room of the Sewadar and put it on fire. He was saved by the Hindu
neighbours and shopkeepers”. He has further stated :

“The mob went towards the Gurudwara 11 which is also managed by the same Committee.
The mob also tried to burm 1t but it was saved by the Hindu neighbours who have a common &

wall with the Gurudwara.”
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In the affidavit of S. Gurcharan Singh (no. 2273, living in Punjabi Bagh area (West Distt.}. it has been
stated
“After sometime, iwo buses. 2 trucks and ene matador stc pped in front of the Gurudwara.
Matador came incide and sacks of sugar. wheat and the tins of shee ete. were lcaded in it. In
one truck 400.—500 beddines and in the ether cots. one lecker containing cash {which could not
bz broken). utensils, four gelden chanwars, five silver chanwars and other articles were loaded.
All these prople had come by the aforesaid vehicles. Then they started setiing the Gurudwara
on fire. To save our lives, we jump>d from the back <ide over a disprnsary and ran for our
fives,

These representative affidavits indicate the manner in which the Gurudwaras were attacked. The
fact that local Hinus protected the Sikh residents as alwo their Gurudwaras frem the cnslaught of the
riotous mabs in som2 areas 1s indicative of the faet that the Hindus as such were netout to canage pre-
prriles armike an attack on the lives of the Sikhs. It would, thercfore, not be correct to say that Hindus
452 community sarried the attack against the Sikhs. their preperties and their places of wor-hip. Many
Hindus, as foun:i by the Commission clewhere, extended every passible help, even at consicerable risk
1o themselves, to protect the Sikh interest. [t is. however. a fact that pecple who constitute the anti-
social elemant among the Hinlus as also seme other communities other than Sikhs had participated in
the riots.. From the manner of operations carricd in the Gurudwaras it is patent that the real eve was
on the property avallable to be taken away from the Guruldwaras and simultancously an attempt was
made to damage the Gurudsaras after defiling the sacred beoks within them.

Coming to insidents of killing. reference may be made to a few of the sample affidavits placed
bxfore the Commission.  [n the affidavit of Balwinder Singh (no. 2331). resident of Basti Sarai Rohilla
within North Delhl he has said -

“Almast all the Sikhs abanlon:d the Gurudswara but my aforeeaid son was on the rcof of
Guruiwara. Then Isaw vwo Hindus whe went to my son and one of them was Szhah Singh,
resident of-House No. €30 Mou Bagh. Sarat Rohilla. Delhi. They teld my son within my
hzarine that they wore patice offizials and they caught hold my son from his hair and then threw
him down from th: roof. Then bath of them came down and  Sahab Singh struck iron rod
twis: in the hoad of my son. Many Hiadus were present there. My son fell down,  Then
they sprinkizd kerosen: ol on iny <20 anl set him on fire.  Sihab Sinch was the person who
¢id all this 1 my presence. . a

Th: veung man threw awav hiv buraning clothes and started runnine.  He was hospitalised where
he succumbzd (o the burns on November 2, 1984 Tt mav be pointed out that in this affidavit reference
to finnx by the jawans of the RPF has been made.  According to the deponent. in an unprovoked way
th firinz started and continuzd untit the rioters had entered Into the Gurudwara. The deponent
apnzared befare the Commission as & witnzss and has supported the same story.

Affidavit of Smt. Prakash Kaur. rvesiding in the Slum Tensment of Garhi (no. 2340) narrates ihe
killing operation thus :

“On 2-11-84. at about 4 p.m. about 200 to 300 non-Sikh mob came 10 kill me and my
famly m2mSersand attacked us. Door of my house wasbroken.  Atthat time my sons Bakshish
Stngh (25) and Arjan Singh (18) and one Rajinder Sinsh affas Gudu (23) were taken out frfom our
housz na. 192 Block 3, Trnlokpurt. My hushand was also taken out by the mob fiom the said
quarter no. 192 where they were hiding for safety. by breaking open the door of the quarter.
They sto-ted beating my sons and husband mercilessly with iron rods and lathies. My son
Arjan Singh and Rzjinder Singh alias Gudu were kiiled on the spot by one Rama. driver, tiving
in second street from my house in bisck no. 30, | . Bakshish Singh tried 1o save himself and thus
ranaway. He wasinjured by stones. He fell down, but he again got up and started running:
then he entered into one house in the area.  He weni up the roof of thathouse.  The above men-
tionad assailants followed him and then  threw him down from the roof and then they put
kerosenz on him while he was alive and burnt him alive. My husband Gurbachan Singh was
severely beaten and he was thrown in the fire, but some persons save his hfe.”
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Yet another incident of killing is available from the affidavit of Smt. Manmohini Kaur of Mahavir &
Enclave, Palam Roud (no. 2378). It savs : &
“. . .Hardly had we come out of our house that the mob attacked our house, They surround- &
cd my husband and his two younger brothers and drogged themyaway.  When my father-in-law &
tried to bolt the door from inside, then I was inside along with my vounger son.  They forcibly =
opened the door and the man who came first near my father-in-law gave a blow with his sword &
on my father-in-law’s head. My father-in-law asked me to go away with my younger son. 1 ”
pleaded with that assailant to Kill me also.  That assailant and some other persons took my €
father-in-law on the back lane where my husband and his two younger brothers had been dragged e
away. I do not know anybody from the mob because all of them were outsiders. .. The .
assatlants remained standing there until the victims fell afier getting grievously injured. 1 went &
to the place where they were beaten. They were asking for water. 1 ran to my house to fetch e
water but these persons had taken away the lever of our hand pump. [ begged my neighbours
for water. My hubsband, one of his brothers and my father-in-law dicd then and there. ... " €
One more instance of killing is very pathetically described in the affidavit. of Smt. Padmi Kaur w
(no. 2497), living in Sultan Puri area. The incident also took place on November 1, 1984, and she €
narrates :
gT_;;
“After some ime the mob airived, broke open our door and came jnside. They caught &
hold of my daughter Maina Kaur forcibly and started tearing her clothes.  In her self-defence =
my daughter also tore their cJothes and also hit them. They tried to criminally assault my <
daughter. "My husband begged them to let her go. The mob said that they would kilt him
‘“Koyibhi Sikh ka bacha nahin bachepa™ (No Sikh son would be spared). They broke the hands g
and feet of my daughter and kidnapped her. They confined her in their home for three days. &
1 know some of the persens in the mob.  Their names are as under - .
&
Ganpat. Hart Om (brother of Gupta). Brahmanand Gupta and Jai Bhagwan both reside in
A-4. Gupta has a kerosene oil depot, Romesh of B-2 and Udal resides in A-4 whose ltouse is near &
the hotel. Ramu known as Bakri Wala, Mohan who has a cow. Now my daughter Maina Kaur -
has fallen 31l and has become like a mad girl. '
R
After this the mob attacked my husband Charan Singh, son Ashok Singh, neighbour o
Balwinder Singh, brothers Inder Singh and Dalip Singh, nephew Bhajan Singh; brothers-in-law 53
Prem Singh and Dharam Singh and Dharam Singh’s son Anil Singh. The mob used to hit 2=
them on heads with lathis and set them on fire after pouring kerosene 0l over thens. They had =
some kind of powder with thert which caught fire when thrown on an object. All of them died . &
there.” : :
Another deseription of killing is available in the affidavit of Amrit Kaur (no. 2630), resident of Mangol- -
puri area where the incident took place on Novembei 3. 1984, She states - : “
%ek:

“On  3rd November. at 4 O'clock in the morning my husband waskilled before my eves.
Firstly, Ram Niwas of Plot No. Y-432 and 431, Mangolpuri collected Jai Pal, his brother Ram T g
Naiain, Puran Dhobi, his brother Kalwa. Nanu, Satvir Bhangi and Kale Bhangi who stavs with

him and Mouji Ram Bhangi. a BhangiJady who is known by that name. &
First of all. Ram Niwas having 2 big iron rods. hit my husband on the head saying that &

“Yai sala Wadhawa Singh Hai™. The incidents of Ist and 2nd have been explained by my &

brother Thakur Singh. This incident! p:riains to the morning of 3rd ai about 4 O'clock which

I witnessed myself.  After this, Satvir Bhangi. Mouji Ram, Kala Bhangi. who is my neighbour, #

pointed cut that he is the bloody Wadhawa and then Puran Dhobi hit my husband with a sword &

and his brother Kalwa alias Lala and Jai Pal ‘Brickwala® who lives in Y Block, all these reside
in Y Block, kilied my husband before myv eyes.  After that his body was thrown on a handcart
and mx brother Bhajan Singh was ordered to push that. My brother was also beaten by sticks
and later when he could not push the hand cart. he was also killed and put on the same handgart
and was burnt together with my husband. Three relatives had come to mv house, one of them
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was kulkd on 2nd, and the other two which included my uncle Ladha Smgh and the other one
was my father-in-law. Jussa Singh, werc forcibly taken away by Ram Niwas Khatti, milk-vender
of Plot No. Y. 431-432 and had burnt them alive.  Afterwards Ram Niwas and his companions
tried to rape me.” '

The Jast of these rapresentative affidavits relating to killing is of Jogi Singh (no. 2367) fiom Kalyan-
puri area where the incident is said to have taken place on Novmber 1. 1984, He narrates :

] went to inform the parents of iy Bhanja Jorawar Singh that he had been killed in Block
No. 11, Kalyanpuri. When 1 was coming after informing his parents I saw that pon-Sikh mob
has set on fire our Gurudwara near my house. ltwasaboutr7.30am. 1 rantomy
house and my neighbour Ch. Jagbir Singh asked me to hide myself in his house and 1 did so.
When the mob had gone away I came out from his house. Similarly other Sikhs who were
hiding in the houses of Hindus nearby also came out. . S '

At about 4.30 p.m. on 1-11-84, non-Sikh mob of about 2000 to 3000 instigated, motivated
and led by Dr. Ashok, Congress (I} Councillor of the area came there.and started attacking
the houses of Sikhs. A bus of my relatives namely, Wazir Singh, Bachan Singh and Mohabai
Singh which was parked near my house was set on fire by them. At that time I was hiding in
the house of Dal Chand Ration Shop Owner in the area and from there from the holes 1 was
secing everything. -

~ Then the mob'set on fire the house of Swroop Singh who wasliving in my street and Swaroop
Singh was brought by Dharam Deo Maji living near my house and Jai Narain who was
earlier living near my house, buthad shified to Block B at that time, along with four five others
who can be identified by me. and he was killed by daggers and then was szt on fire by them, i.e.
Dharam Deo Maji. Jai Narain and others. 1 saw this incidemt myself.

That Wazir Sini’vh was also killed by them in a similar manner by diagging him from his -
house. He was killed d4nd burnt by Dharam Deo Maji. Jai Narain and their 2/3 more com-
panions in the presence of that big mob, where Dr. Ashok. Conoress (1) Coungillor wis also
present and he was msncatmg them to kil the Sikhs mercxle<sl\

Shri Gurcharan Singh (no. 2706) r851dent of Lajpat Nngar area. presented a case of arson and [

- jooting. He staied :

N ““At 10.30 a.m. on I-11 84 a mob led by Shri Himmat Rai {Congress woirker) and broth
of Sh. T.R. Malhotra Member, MCD and Shri Sain Ditta Mal of B-1/164 Lajpat Nagar came

“from Post Office side. The mob was.comprising of 150/200-perst sons mostiy -of shuggi jhoupris .

and few miscrednts from Lajpat Nagar, New Delhi. ... The mob was armed with iron rods,
pztrol cans, kerosens cil. lathis and some pcmder stones etc. and most of the persons were
armed with same type of | athxes iron réds ete. and came from Post Office side.  These 110ters
were brought inbuseswhich were parked near S. Avtar Singh’shouse in E-] st Block, Lajpat Nagar.
and these buses were seen by S. Avtar Singh and others and the rioters were taken by local

_' leaders 1o Gurudwara. ... My own shop, office, Gurudwara records, cash amount of Rs. 4400/
of Gurudwara, Rs. 3500,- of Singh Sabha Sc‘hc’)o]'. records of school, my professional and business
papers. account books were all burnt down. ~ My four Ambassador curs bearing registration

Nos. DLY 473, 474, 475 and DLY 807 were set on fire by the mob and damaged them. The
police party during that time were heard saying ‘Jo kuch ho sakta haikaro’ and this pelice party
went away thereafter.” :

Thzs deponent was cross-examined by the Delhi Administration at length and nothing substantial has
come out in cross-examination to take away the eﬁ"ect of his afﬁdw\n

Some allegation of molestation of yvoung “ladies has been made in a few affidavits, None of the

deponents who was cross-examined adverted to {“isaspecy. The Investigating Agency did pursue this
* matter butino evidence of dependable natuie could be ottained. The Commission. keeping in view the
qualitv.of theipznsle invelved inthe operations. would: not have been surprised to come acioss a few
incidents of thistype.
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An analytical break-up ofthe affidavits filed b\ ﬂn: victims with reference to various types of inci- )
dents poh.,c_ sstation wisc has beeh prephred by the Commission.  Similarly. the affidavitshave been classi- -
fied on the basis of date-wise incidents:referred to therein,  These are available in Volume 1T at pp. 4-11,
Appendix 3 of the Report.

Grievanee has been made thatieven when the injured were tuken to hospitals. at certain places
doz1ors were not available: at-othersproper  treatment was not provided and at yet others indifference
was shown. Docters belong to one’ gfithe noblest professions in the community and their professional
dissiplinz requires them to saveieveryhuman Jife and make all possible attempts 10 relieve the suffering
without bothering about caste or cofmmunity, status or situation of the patient.  Indian doctors with
12ir high spirit und tradition could nduhave allowed themsglves to be obsessed by the thought that two
guards of the Sikh community hud murdered the demoeratically chosen leader of their great polity.

Theie is assertion that some incidents continued to happen even after t}ie 3rd November but the
Commission is of the view thatthe riotghad 2nded hy that date and whatever happened thereafter was of
the strayv type and could not be taken to b2 a part of the riots.

The conclusions of the :hwe.stxgq_tmg Ageney in respect of thirty incidents nvestigated by it are
available in Vol. I1. Appendix 4. pages 12-18. '

{d) Rele pla\ed by the Railway Adm-mstratlon

At the instance of the victimsythe Northern Rall\nv was called upon to produce certain docu-
mants and answer certain interrogaidsies. Prof. Madhu Dandvate, who was and also is now a Member '
of Parliament, was travelling by thesRisjdhani Express fiom Bombay to Delhi on November 1, 1984. He

filed an affidavit (no. 2641) and wasoalso cross-examined. He has, in his affidavit, stated :

“When the train reached Mathura station on the morning of 2nd Novembsr 1984, 1 found
Jarge number of armed police’as well as commundos guarding the station. At this station - some
outsiders entered the t:amn.

Whan the train r:aéhed;f[:ughhkabnd station on 2nd Novémber morning a Jarge number
of pzrsomns carrying i1on rods. gxes. crow-bars sic. entered our train.  They were searching for
Sikh passengersinthe train: They declared that no Sikh will be allowed to Izave the train alive.
At that time 1 I_'ound that-somé Sikhs in the adjoining compaitments were pulled down by these
outsiders carrying weapons.  I:found two Sikhs killed and thrown on the platform and then
their dead bodies ware s2t on fire on the platform. The police standing on the platform made

no efforts to prevent eithes the killing o1 bwining of the Sikhs. X

Afizr som= tim: | found a raitway emoloyee in blue uniform and who was a Sikh came out
from the Seition Masiar’s. Ofice. H: was immediately surounded by a crowd of outsiders
ass2mbixd on the platform and the Sikh cirployee was killed on thz spot,

The train halted atthe Tughlukabad station for more than 4 hours. The outsiders who had
stormed the train: had.spread the rumow that arca of Ashram Marg on \.&axnte New Delhi
was surrounded by Sikhs and.if the troinmoved 1owards New Delhi Station every Hindu inthe
rain was likely to be athc-\ed by the Sikhs, ‘Frightenad by these rumouws. many persons in the
train and particularly women aql\ed the train <.uih0"ltl€s not to move the train further.

! then contacted the Station Master and asked him to find cut from the New Delhi Station
whether there was any disturbance en the route from Tughlakabad to New Delhi. When 1
found that the route was safe and that there was no disturbance at all. I came back. to the train
and addressed passenoess.in a-number of compartmenis assuring them that there was no dis-
turbance on the route and-if they keep the doors of the train closed so that no outsiders enter the
train, the Rajdhani Express-could reach the New Delhi Station safelv. On the demand of the
passengers I requastad the police auth orities to post anarmed policeman in every alternate com-
partment. On doing this the passengers aliowed the train to move forward and ultimately the
‘train.reached safelv at New Delhi station.” ’
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He furiher stated in the affidavit that he discovered ut least 3 more dead bodies of Sikhs lying in
various compuartments.  He was of the view that “the murders of the Stkbs and burning of their dead
bodies at the Tuzhlakabad station could have been definitely prevented if police at the station were not
W remiin passive speciators of the gruesome acts of the hooligans who had come from outside the
station”. His affilavit and his statement in cross-examination make it clear that at Mathura which is
in the State of Uttar Pradesh, the Comimandos and tie police parties were ready for aclion when the
train came on the platform.  He hims2!f stated that the situation at Tughlakubad was verv different,
In his reply to a question by the Commission he stated - :

“The police puity which was standing at the foot of the ovei-bridge was a zroup of tagit

spaclutors. No attemdt wiy mude w extinguish the fire with which two bodies wzre being
burnt.” ' :

The evidence given by Prof. Dandvate mikes several aspects clear. AL Mathurs ads ance ¢are had been
taken before the train came on to the platforn 1o ensuce that nathing went wrong while at Tughlakabad
which is within the Union Territory of Dzlhi no such wrangement was made and the police became
sijent speclittors wien the murders took place, ~Nothing has been brought vut in the cross-examination
of Prof. Dandvate to discard his afidavit. Tae Commission takes note of the fact thar Piof. Da"nd\'alc
is @ MembSer of Purfiament and was 0icz upon a time Ministar for Raifwavs and there is absolutelv no
justification to disbzlieve his evidence. -

Seven First Information Repoits avaiable on recoid have been tuken notwe of in the writien argu-
ments of DSGMC. Many of these are by Railway employecs.

FIR 355.84 ix dated Novembar 1. 19584, and appears 10 v e been lodzed 4 1230 pm. The i
formani is one Rimashwar Daval. Boaking Closk at Tushiakabad Ruilway Siation.  The 2xact narration
is thus :

“Avabout 12,30 pom. Bombay Jam toain sisgonsd o 2 dbazy Statton Tughlukabad from
Mithara,  Inthe mzanwhile 2 mob of ubout 309-330 nxarby villagers holding batons, lathis,
iron rods in air hands cune o the Rubwvay Sragion and after cryrazscing the sationed train
{rom all sides started dragging out the truveiling Sikh passengers and surtad beating themn with
batons. lathis and iron rods and raised ihe slorans as *fun se mar do. kel kar do“f

A%

Some of
g fire 1o the injured
Sikh passsngers.  Because thes? passzagers were already injured a fot that is why thev could not

thesz village vouths were holding kevoszne oil in their hands and sto-ted sersir

run here and theve. Like this the geng of village vounths set fire to about 25.26 Sikh passenoers
by soraving kzarosene ol on them  Tas=s: pissengas expired duz to manhandling and the
spraving ol kerosene oil on wiem. wiose half burnt dead bodies ars ving her

re and there on the
Railway Station. Tughlakabad and on the railwuy track.™ -

FIR No. 357 on 2-11-84 lodged at 10 a.m. was by the Guard of 25 Da, Bombay-Amritsar Del

) uxe.
This wain for want of signal clearance was forced 1o siop at Tughlukabad Railway Swrion. it was
alleged that 2009 m2n surrounded the train. removad its hosepipes and made it immobile. The men

armed with lathis. sticks and wron rods pulled out the Sikh passengers. thrashed them mercilessly and
szt them on firc. When the police cume the mob ran away. The trajn lefi Tughlakabad around 1.27 p.m.
and reached Delhi at 2.05 p.m. & dead bodies were recovered at that place from the compariments.

FIR No. 356 lodged at the New Delhi Railway Station a< 7 a.nw. on 2-11-84 on the basis ol & memo.
sent by the Assti. Station Master. Delhi Kishanganj. with refereace to the incident at Nangloi Rajlway
Swation. reads thus : '

“Please airange to remove |2 dead bodics vinz on platorm-al Naneloi to uvoid panic.
Alvo arrange armed feree o protect staff and station.” Heavy mob eollected in and arcund R il
way Station.  Stail notin a p ssivion to p.rform daties.”

It clear from thess as also the other FIRS wiere simiferallegntions hive been mde that no arran-
cements were mads for protecting ihe pissongers &ither in ruARing train. orwhen traine « t ppod at Rativw i
Stativni—being authorised or unautherised <ieppige. If prop r care had been 1aken and the phies




22

.

had remamcd active and played even the normal role ofpolxcerncn as Prof. Dand»atc has told the Com~W
mission, nothing untoward was likely to have happ:ned. The Commission takes note of the difference
in the arrangements at Mathura Junction in U.P. and diffcrent stations within the Unioen Territory of
Delhi.  Whetber it be RPF, Govt. Railway Pulice or Delhi Police. all appear to have become indifferem
within the Union Territory.

From the answer to the interrogatories given by the Railway Administration it is clear that 46 train
were foreed to make unauthorised halts cither at Railway Station< where such trains had no steppuge
" or oulside station arcas.  Some of thase trains were long distance ones while others were leedl trzins,
1t appzars that armed men came by these trains.and moved into Delhi. At convenient places they got
down within the Union Territory 10 casTy on rigtous activitics by stepping thase trains.  Obvicwsly,
when information spreaa that riots werc taking place in Delhi, disturbed conditicns prevailed, lot of
looted property was available; gangsters from outside get attracted, found the situation inviting and moved
into the city.  The Railway Administration has alse given information that huhdreds of Delhi beung
trains were cancelled/terminated at different places—station or otherwise—auring the riots.  Frem the
“dates given I regard to the unauthorised sioppage of trams and the termination of trains it is clear that
unauthorised stappages tock place on 1-11-84 and a small part of the 2ne. Cancellation/termination
of train services in regard to several trains was done frem 2nd afterncen. - What #23s done on 2nd after- |
noon should possibly have been done from Ist afternoon beeause by then on account of the proaimity
of the Headquarters, the Railway authorities should have come to know as to exactly what was happening.
The claim of the Railway authorities that the RPF handled thz situation property and rose to the cecasion
does not appzar to be a fact. 1 the RPF along with local police had workea properly these events would
not have happened.  The prutccuon provided with the intervention of Prof. Dandvate should have been
provided in the trains opsrating from 31st afterncon witheut being asked for.  In that event also these
casualties would not have happened.  This appears 1o be a case of neghgence and want of assessment
of the situation on the part of the Raijway Administration.

(e) Deaths at Delhi

The Governmeznt disclosurc in Parliament took the number of killings at Delhi to 2146.  Bcefore
the Commission the Dzthi Admimstration filed a list of parsons upon whese death payment of ccmpen-
sation had been admitied and given to the n2xt of kin.  The number of such pzrsons was disclosed as
2212. ’

"The Commussioncalled upon the partiss—=-victims as also the Administration—toproducc a detailed
list of p2rsons killeo during the riots.  Several extensions were given to both sides. It is only when the
Commission insisted that ths list should be filec ana no extension would be granted and if necessary.
adverse inference would bz drawn, the CJC filed a list on March 31, 1986. showing the total number of
daaths to bz 3870, The D:lhi Administration later filed a statement before.the Commission admitting
the numbszr of dzaths during the riets to be 2307.

Betw==n the initial disclosare of deaths in Delht as made ip Parliament and the latest figurs given

b) thc Delbi Adminisiratior, thux is a difference &f 161 -

At the foot of the list supplied by the CIC ther: has been a littiz amhmmml exercise. The grand
total has bzzn shown as 3242 out of which there has baena d:duvthn of 149 on the ground of duplication
and again 70 namszs have bzen add2d.  This is how the figure of 3870 has been reached.  There still
app:2rs to be an arithmetical error in the totalling of the number.  The correct number should be 3874

A copy of tha list supplied by the CJC was madc over to the Delhi Administration with a direction
that the same may be checked up and comm=nts as to its carreciness or acezptability should be filed.
In compliance with the direction the Delhi Administration has filed its comments along with an affidavit
of Shri Bhatia, Joint Secretary (Home).

The First Information Reports in regard to killings at Delhi put the fizure at 1419, As already stated,
the Deputy Commissioner of Dalhi who had verified the ¢laims has Jater accepted the number of deaths
to be 2307. Onbacomparative basis of the namss disclosed inthe FIRs and in the Depity Commissioner’s
list, 315 parsons whose names appzar in the FIRs do not figure m the Deputy Commissioner’s list.
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The list given by the CIC dozs notconrtain full nuns;s and all the r2quired pirticubirs for identifica-
un.  Incertitin cases, for instancs in respect of Delh: Cantt. Police Station, the total number of deaths
has bz2n shown to be 368 but 15 a fact only 320 namss have been given.  Thus there is no montion of
any name for the remaining 48 persons. Aguin, in the list reluting 1o Police Station Tilak Nagar where
deaths have been shown to be of 67 persons. ¢nby 62 names have boen dicclosed. Reference 1o these
w0 Police Stations is illistrative.  Possibly, the Commitice may not be blamed for this situation. In
fuct. a clear cut investigation 10to this aspeet of the Inquiry is noi casy.  On the basis of the affidavies
the Commission made an atiemot > callect the number of dzaths-bug that acain appzired 1o be bath
difficult as also misleading.  In many affidavits names of the killed have not been specified.  There are
several affidavits which refer to the same deaths.  Again. many deaths are not covered by any affidavit.
In such a sitvavon affidavits do 1ot provide a <ound basis for determining the numbszr of prople killed
during the riots. It is in evidénce that hundreds of the peopls so killed were burnt while they were half
dead or while they were in an unconscious state or had already died. The DSGMC his specified in
written frgtmeznts 0omes of 73 prople who were burnt alive, 7 who were burnt after they h:d become
unconscious and 13 prraons whe wore burnt after they had died. There is evidence that hundreds of
charred bodizs were recovercd. * These obviously wnd idse thase that had been burng wers not  subjected
to prstmortem. i postmartem on other dead bodies had been made the patmertem figure itself weuld
have provided a sound basis for determining the number of dead peepiz 1t is a fact that Delhi has g
Iot of floating pepulation and hundreds of Sikh pzople from Punjab Keep visiting Delhi every naw ang
thea on account of proximity and business activities, vight-sseing and other family nzczssitiss. There
have be:n many affidavits belore the Commission where reference to such visiting. guests 1o have been
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affected durinz the ricis has been made.  Similarly. every now and then a number of regular residengs
& of Dzlhi go over to Punjeb. On the basis of ration cards where the toral number of members of every
cird holder family is indicated, prepereziculition connet be made because there ars severs] pecple resi-

dirg 12 Delhiwho are nzveard holders. There are ghost ration cards in existence and ranion cards also
Jdo not refiect the exact numb:r of prople in thy family. Muany people who had gone over 10 Punjab
did not return soon afier the riots on accouat of the continuing disturbed conditiors. Al these Circuins-
tane s hive made the inguirs for asceri2inmg the definite number of p2opic who died difficuli, The
aumbar s, howsver, 1o be somewhers berween 387y (arthmaically eorrecied to be 3374) and 25307 —

S5 O @ D

the higher flzure comil'lg'f‘fom thr Committve and the tower figure having besn admitied by the Dalhi
Administration.  Placsd in this situatien. the Commission has no endeivoured 1o ascertnin the exict
number of psople who disd during the riois.  Simultanzeushv, it is a fact that the mitter cannot be takzn
as voncludad uaiil the exact numbor is 3scemrzined by - further ingquiry.  Death givas risz 1o definite
conszqusncas and brings in caridin coasidosanians, A afready found, th: azxt of kin bacome entitled
0a compensation of Rs. 20.000: the recommendaiicn: of the Commission may bring about certain
other bensfits. and if there be a widow or d2pandont relations laoft bzhind, the s or they are entitled 1o
ceriain advanteges.  bis guite fikely that in semiz eases the next of Kin mi: i have com: forward to
raise @ claim on the basis of deaih. The manner in which the Deiki Administraticn
the figure by concading the claim leads the. Commission to ace:pt the posiiien that if there be a further
probeand of a closer typs, it is quite likely: that the namber may insrease. Keeping these asp=cts in view
the Commission recommends that instead of accepting a dedintite mumber as the final list, the matter should
bs kept open for further examination where the number shall not go below 2307 and m1y not go beyond
3874, Butin betwezen the exact number should be ascirained.  Them o iy for asezrtaining this should
b: by the appointmant of en affiser with felip swers 1o 25 into the mitterand he should give public naic-
o invite claims of d=ath within the Union Tefritory of Dethi during the pzriod of riots (October 31 1o
November 7, 1984) by fixing 2 time for raising +7elyims and cho 2 date for finabising the same in accor-
dancs with a piroczdure beizving the rules of natural justice and the figurz should  he determined. A
and when any 02w m: v added to the already aczzpied list of 2307 by the Delhi Adminizirition. the
benziits coniemplated in resprot of the dead paaple shizsuld be eviend=d 1o the next of kin. Since deluv
nughi muke the inguiry ot beazfeisd the mdakiy prop iod in the )
without dalay and o tim:-framez should he prrseribad,

AN ASSESSMENT OF THE SITUATION
On the morning of October 310 1954, after Sins. Gunihi had beon veioved v tie: AJINMS wath bulic)

has been changjng
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wdrier and whent she succummbed 10 them, thzre was. as il wore, o plitical vacuum.  The Head of the
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in as Prims Minister of Indiz. By the time the mother wias injured by bullets, he was away somewhere .
“lin West Bengal and before he returned she wis dead. He had lest hic brether feur years earlicr. Now

the mother was dead being killed by the prople detailed to punrd her. He must have been indeed terribly
shocked zind it i~ difficult ta deseribe the tvp: of mental ageny he must have then been undergoing. He
was called in to shoulder the respoansibitity of Prime Minidter of India without anv time 1o get mentally
tuned to underntake the heavy rosponsibility of that aucust oflice.

Lo boy mducted into the office of the Prime Mintder, e mnde an effective appea] 1o the nation
through the TV a1 2,50 PAAML. whore he saad
Ny dear Caountrynten.

On this the saddast day of my Bfe 1epzak to you when L am totally overiaken by the dark
cloud of cruet fate.  Our beloved Mrs. Indire Gandhi is na loneer with us. 1 have Jost my
dearest friznl, we have all Tost ons of the grestest leadars our countny has ever produced and
the world has Tost i harbinger of price who was undoubtedly the greatest woman teader mankind

has ever produced...... The less of M. Gandbi is for me unbzarable.  In spie of her pre-
occopation with her official duiizy, we m-t oitzn. For me each suzh mesting was a memorable
expiricncs. ... .. The dastardly act of asassins which is not only heinous but a crime against

humanity itself, has put tie naticon te et at an extremely eritical juncture of our history.  The
unity amd ntzgnty of the nation is beine ehallinzed. Let our griaf riai cleud our good sense
and muunty both as individuils and a mion. God shalf grant us the strength to mect the new
challenges.™

Hz also instracted the pzople conczrnad to take effective step. to see that thers was no deterioration in
the faw and order sitaneon. I nzezssany, he sdvised that thr Army may bz called in. When the nzws
of Smt. Gundhi's death spread thowsand. of murnzys started ¢alling upm the nzw Prime Minister to
comvey condalences.  The dead hoady wis tsken from ihe AHEMS 1o the official residence at | Safdarjang
Road. It was decrded to kecp the bady instate at Teenmurt! Bhavan for a few davs to enable the pzople
of India as also Heads of States of the warld 10 pay resnects 10 the departed souland participate in the
offiztel funzral. Funeral wos fixed for November 3. 1984, Hundreds of thousands of people started
collecting in Teenmurti Bhavan 10 have o Lust glimpse of their beloved leader.  Arrangements for reception
of the visiting dignitaries from different counwics who  were coming 1o participate in the funere} had to
b= undertaken. Keeping up to protocol. Shri Rajiv Gandhi had 1 receive many of thess dignitaries.
Evidently Smt. Gandini had been Lilled in the hands of the security guards on account of lapse in seourily
arrangements.  The way in which she had been kilied left scope for grave doubts about the efficacy of
thz security.  The situation had indecad been an alarming one.  Whether evil desiens had come to an
end with Sat. Gandhi being kitled was notdefinitaly known. 1t s in these circumstances that Shri Rajiv
Gindhi had bezn cilied upon to shoulder the arduous respensibilitics of the offcc of Prime Minister of
the largest democracy, '

In the morning of Novambzi 1. St Gandhi’s body was taken to Teenmu: ti Bhavan from No. 1
Salda-jang Road to lis 1n state so thet the moarners could take the last glimpse of her physical body.
Tiz arrangemeatatthe Tesnmurti Bhavan wos two-{0ld-VIPs were permitted to come into the room
througn the guided entrange 1o file post the dezd body and those who wanted 1o mnke entries in the con-
dolenze regist>r ware parmittzd t0 do so: the common peaple were allowed to march past on the outer
side without coming into th: room. Tnrousrnds of people thronged in the premiises of Teenmurti Bhavan

in the morning of November 1. 1984, The Dethi Police found it almost impossible to keep control of

the sitwation at Teenmurti Bhaven and by the afiernooen the- Armiy had to‘take over the control.  Fhe
low key of the Dezlai Police scen at Teenmurti Bhavan was an sxhibition of lack of leadesrshij . imaginam ¢
planning and incapacity to contiol mebs in an odd situstion.

Inseveralof the afidavits filed before the Commission it was ulleged thet through the Doordurshan
on November 1. 1984, o program wos arranged whercin 1t was said “Ahoeon Aa badla khoon™ (blood for

blood) obviously suggesting that as Smt. Gandhi had been murderad, the community of the two murder-
ers should alsobrdonctadzath, Towesugoosiad that Shei Radiv. Gandhi was within the Teeamurni
Bhavan doane the morning hours of Novopsha 119820 His presencs there was quite notaeal and he i
obviously nothing to do with the TV progom.
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o The Union of India denied having undertaken any progiam in which Doerdarshan had permitted
B shouting of a slogan--*blood for blood™. 1t appears that after the dead body was taken to Teenmurti
& Bhavan on Novemter 1, live telecust arrangement had been made covering the dead body lving in stats
and the people who would move around eithe: in the room whete the dead body was kept or the crowd

that would fly past on the outer side at the lower level so that millions in the country who could not come
& to Dethi would be able to associate themselves with what was going on at Teenmurti Bhavan. 'In the
morning of November 1. a group of people passing through the passage at the lower level did raise the
& shout *khoon ka badla khoon'.  Since the live telecast arrangements had then been working. the crowd
along with the sheutdid come on the TV and their shout was heard. When directed by the Commission.
< the Director-General of Doordarshan appeared before it and explained the situation in which this pait
e of the program had becn covered and to substantiate the explanation, he exhibited that part of the cas-
sette where the shouting crowd were seen and their shout was recor ded. The Director-General explained
& ’ that the officers of the Doordarshan never apprehended that a ¢crowd paying iespect to the departed
8 leader would raise such a shout which on account of the live program would get zelevised.; The moment
this was realised thz live telecast arrangement was switched off, When the cassetle was played, the Com-
e mission found that the shout had been repeated for 18 times spread over 37 seconds. The impugned
2 shouting cam: all of a sudden at high pite't which probabilizes the position that the Doordarshan people
could not have app-ehended it. It melted away as the crowd was-pusitzd ahead by the police. From
& the original cassette. the Commission has made a copy. Though it-had bzen alleged that this telecast
e wasarrdngad, the Commission is of the view that n2ither the Prime Minister norany one in Government
had any role to play in the matter and the Doordarshan authorities did not ntentionally do anything.
& The tims lag bztween the Objectionable matter being telecast and the swilching off also is not unreason-
) ably long to suggest. as alleged. tha: Doordarshan wanted it to continue. The Director-General of Door-
@ ~ da-shanalso told the Comnission rthatcare was taken thereafter to keep off anv objectionable matter from
&£ being included in the live program.
&
L5
&
&

There is no basis for the allzgation that the All India Radio 2nd Doordarshan had given. oyt the
nzwsthat Smt. Gandhi's assassing were twao’ of her Sikh guardsand circulation of such information through
nzws madia helped generation of anti-Sikh bias. The Commission has scrutinised the news scripts
of both media for the 31st October #nd Ist November and it is noticed tFat there 1S No mention at all
that the assassins were Sikhs. Mention of this information in ordinary course would have been consi-

7

> dered as usual but discretion appears to have been exercised thoughtfully in this case.
It was unfortunate that ths happenings in different areas of Delhi were aot being contemporaneously

repoitzd to Policz Hzadguartersand there was. therefore, no proper feeding of what was happening even
to the Administrator—Lt. Governor. Shri Gavai has admicted -

locat offizzrs and the policz and the district administration as also the Commissioner’s level.

Coosaguzatly. contemporanzous and timaly reports of incidznts were not received at the other

end. A truz pictuce of the situation was not em:rging and dscision making was. therefore,
- aftected.” ‘ :

&
e "l am inclined 1o agiee that thare was a failure in the channel of communication between
&
8

® Since this was the position at the lavel of the Administiator, the exact picture of what was happening must
& not have reached ths Hom: Ministzr or the Prime Ministzi. There is matziial placed before the Commis-
sion from which it appears that waile Shiri R~i'v Gindhi was in mourning and was busy giving occea-
e sional attention to the dead body lyving in state at Teenmury B!myan and receiving foreign dignitaries
& wiho started arriving from the evening of November 1, 1984, he had tried to ensuwie maintenance of iaw
and order and was giving directions in thatregard.: He requasted the visiting Chief Ministers to return
to their 1'es'§ectiv: Sthates;;nd ensiure thatall possible stzpsfor the maintenance of law and order were taken.
When the worst had happznzd on November I. Mambers of Pailiamsnt and other leading people staited
raising huz and cry and ultimately calied upon the Prime. Minister. An assessment of the situation
was ﬂ;en made. The Lt Governor was attending this meeting.  Shri  Gavai has told the Commission -

for a personal interview with him and he obliged. He told me : *Gavaij you sh_ouid have acted

more swiftly incalling in the Army’. 1 did not ente; into any argument with him on that score

but I said : ‘Sir. your mother was a great p2rsonage and that her assassination was a maj'Or cala-
" mity which had befallen the nation. He: assassinfation was bound to cause repercussions’.”
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- He continucd

“In the cowrse of this talk 1 pointed out that durmﬁ the curfew period there were ma 1 :
occusions when bystunders came out of their housas just 10 sec what was going on. Govern.
ment did not expect the administration 1o shoot those people as curfew treakers. 1 finthe
pointed out that any such move would have been o politically unwise action.  Afier that when
Pwashanging about there the Prime Minister told me  *Gavatii vouaic a heart patient and vou
should now take rest’.” '

Itisintheevidencs of the then Li. Governorthathe was soon advised te proceed on leave. On November 3.
he wrote a letter to the President wheretn he stated

“Although ] have no reason to believe that 1 have fuiled in my dutizs in the unprecedented
cireumstances. 1 hereby resign from thz post of Lieutenam GO\ ernor out of my sense of moral
responsibility.

An indication of my intention to resign was given by me to the Cabinet Secretary and also
the Home Minister on 2nd November. 1984 taelf, but 1 had withheld it as il was nccessary for
me to oversee the arrangements for the funeral of the fate Prime Minister from our side.”

The letter contains an admission of moral responsibility for what happened at Delhi.  Perhaps
it was something more than that.  The Commission doss not propose to go into that aspect and assess
the extent of his iesponsibility. Shii Gavai had already suffered 2 major heart attack prior 1o the riots
and had very likely bacome unfit 1o continue 10 take any physical Joad upon himsell. He should not
have bzsn maintained in a kev post hike that of Adminisuator of the Union Territory at such a crueizl
petiod which had started soen after the Blus Sta: Operation. Shri Gavai is in broken health and when
he appeared before the Commission. he gave the impiession of havine broken down after the riots and
what followed thereafter.  What the Prime Ministzr could assess on the 2nd November 1984, within two
days of assuming offiz: and after a few rounds 10 the riot affected areas should have been realised long
before and pathaps Shri Gavai should have been replaced after he had suffered a mzssive heart attack.
Thne post of Adminisirator should have been minned by 4 very comnetent person—uogile. astute, deter-
mned. expzrienced. {a:sighted. knowledgeable. The need for such a person for Delhi was all the more
so on azgount of the primacy of this Union Teriitory as covering the scat of the countiy’s capital and
inthe backd: op of the developments that had then currently taken place.

There is muaterial onrecord that Shri Rajiv Gandhi moved incertain affected atcason2nd November
witha view 10 having a spot assessment of the situation and for boasting up the mosale of the rint victims.
Even on the 3rd be took another round 2s would be noticed fater.  On the moining of 4th November
Shri M.M K. Wali: the then Home Secretaiy was sworn in as Lt. Gover hor.

On November 3 the cremation (n’\}\ plice and.once the cremation was over the Prime Minister who
was until then busy in receiving visiting dignitariessand overseeing the arrangements for the cremation.
started devoting almost full attention 10 the riot situa’ijon, The Commission is of the opinion that Shn
Rapv Gandhi as the Primz Minister notwithsianding the handicapped situation in which he then was.
took all reasonable steps expected of him to meet the situztion that.arose following the assessination of
Smt. Gandhi. He even moved inio the affected arcasagainst advice on the ground of security ond made
2 personal assessment of the situation and boosted up the morale of the viclims. His appeal on the 3]st
October. hisaddress to the naticn on the Ist November, the condemnation of riots in strong terms, his
action in sacking the Administraior and the overall posture adopted against the mad crowed leave no
scope to entertain the allegation in a coupie of affidavits that he too had something 10 do 1o help the
unseemly situaticn.

1n quite 2 number of affidavits there was allegation that Shri H.K.L. Bhagat. Mimster in Smt.

.Gandhi's cabinetand continued in Shri Ranv Gandht's Cabinet. insinuated the non-Sikhs 1o 1ake rev enge

on the Sikhs as two of their pzople had murdered Smt. Gandhi. Implicating of Shri Bhagat in the affi-
davits beflore the Commiission was perhaps inthe air and hundreds of affidevits were filed before the Com-
mission, a few from Sikhsand mosty from non-Sikhsto say that Shri Bhagat had no role to play in orga-
pising the riots: on the other hand. he had helped the Sikhsand attended (o their discomforts and looked
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~ after reha b:lnauon The Comm;smon has dealt with these affidavits :x.pqr'lleh and for reasons mmmted

there not much of reliance has been placed on most of these affidavits. Evenif these affidavits are kept
away. the allegations made in the affidavits from the victims® side have to be sctutinised on their own merit.
F\ccptmc a handlul of affidavits wherc it has been alleged that Shri Bhagat had come to meetings along
with some other local Congress (1) leaders in the night of the 31st October or in the morning of the
IstNovember, andin a few affidavitsalleging distnibution of money by him toboost upriots. the allegaiions
are not very positive or specific. The Commission had no intention of separately dealing with the casc
of Shri Bhagat but as this was very much hightighted. was inquired into by the Investigating Aponey,
evidence about it was specifically led and the affidavits which the Commission has not very much rclicd
upon were pressed into service, the Commission has thought it appmpndw ‘to deal with it.  The Com-I
mission makes it clear that these are prima facie conelusions as far as he is concerned.  In the list at

. 219 of the written arguments of the Commitiec where 16 instances ave cited he is said to have held
a mcctmn of party people. The evidence regzarding what transpired at ;he meeting 78 scanty,

Shri Bhagat was a sitting Member of Parliament from East Delhi consmuencx wherein a bulk of
the tragic incidents have happened. Some people belonging to the Sikh community have deposed be-
fore the Commission that Shri Bhagat had good relationship with the Sikhs and had helped them during
the November riots.  Shri Gavai, the then Lt. Governor in his evidence before the Commission has
stated that on November 1, 1984, Shri Bhagat and Shri Jag Pravesh Chandra had been constantly ringing
up Raj Niwas for assistance iri the affected zreas.  Shri Gavai, on account of the treatment meted out
to him, waslikely to have a grievance against the Governmentand those in Government. His statement
so far as Shri Bhagat is concerned, therefore, should be accepled-as closer to truth.  Shri Bhagat being

- a sitting M.P. and Minister was not likely to misbehave in the manner alleged. Shri R.S. Sethi, who

was then the District Magistrate. has also spoken thus :
1 did not see any political leader of any _parly moving about 1o support the riotous mobs.

. mes in different areas, I am in a position to say that if they had really come out and Jomed the”
mobs, I could have seen them.”

People of the Sikh community being electors of his constituency, Shri Bhagat. keeping the democratic
politician’s behaviour towards the elector in view, was not likely to antagonise the Sikh sympathy
towards him.

There is evidence thatin the election to the Lok Sabha held almost within seven 10 eight weeks of
the riots, certain members of the Sikh community worked in support of Shri Bhagat. For-instance, in
the affidavit filed by Shri Tara Singh [No. 2531] it is stated that he so worked for Shri Bhagat. Some

‘other Sikhs have also accepted that position. 1{Shri Bhagat had indeed played the role of an organiser

of the riots, it is diffi sult to find even a single Sikh supporter in his camp. The rioters had no “pick and
chooss’ mesthod in their operations and when thev attacked a Sikh or his property they never enguired
about his antecedents or party affiliation. 1t was an atlack against the community. Shri Balwinder
Singh [no. 2163}, a2 member of the Sikh community stated in his-affidavit that he contacted Shri Bhagat
on 1-11-84 on telephone and apprised him of what was happening. He was then told by Shri Bhagat
that Sikhs and Hindus should join and putup a common front to meet the 'situation.  He also told him
that he [Shri Bhagat] was Lrying to ensure arrival of a CRP unit withinan hour. This is evidence <l an
assuring type and does indicate against the allegation with reference to Shri Bhagat. There is another
material on record for consideration while dealing with this aspect. It is the case of the victims—ana
has either been accepted or not seriously disputed by others—that the attacking mobs used to swell up
while moving on the lanes and roads—a feature to snggest that the rioters were not an organised team
and were made up by a section of the community willing to play to the mood of the people, satisfy their
hurt sentiments by harassing the Sikhs and share the booty. Again, if violence had been organised,
it would have spread into every corner and the manner in which it abated may not have been possible.

In the absence of convincing material, the Commission is not 3n a position to accept the alleganon that
Shri Bhagat had instigated the rioters.

+~-+ -+ In'view of the fact that 1 was freely moving about during that period and came across several
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That vivlence was let lopse in Delhibetween October 31 and November 3, 1984, is not af all in % -

pute.  Nor is there much of dispute that t'h'iq.,\-iolcncc was essentially one-sided, namely, the non-Sikhs g
attacked the Sikhsand damaged. Jooted and buint their propertics—moveable and immoveable, Gurud- £
waras and killed a few thousands of them. I the party in pobher or a minister or well placed person had '
masterminded or organised the riots. the saime would have taken even a more serious turn.  Itis the case &
of all parties before the Commission that in certain areas there was no trouble of any noticeable degree
and two reasens have been advanced for such a situation —(i) effectiveness of the local police; and (i) &
raising of a combined defence of the local residents. I the Cengress (1) party or a powerful force in gs
the party played any role, neither of these two clements could have functioned in the manner cach of
them has been ascribed. The Commission. with a view 10 ascertaining what exacdy worked to make g
the police p:l'iS.l\'(‘. indifferent and cz2llous, has perused a lot of contemporancous records and examined . e
several official witnosyes. - The Investigating Ageney also did try inits own way to delve into the matter.
In answer 1o searching questions put to the police officers. they have dented any political foree (0 have &
operated behind the seene in the matter of formulation of their attitude and conduct.  The manner znd
the sztting in whigh the questions relating to this aspeet had been asked would in ordinary course have €
brought out snch implication if it were true to any extent.’ &
The Commission has noticed that in a few affidavits the hand of the party politicians was alleped. &
Some of the deponents were cross-examinzd and they have not stood the test while some have not broken .
‘down. Allthe material on the record in the ultimate analysisis not evidence of that type relying on which - €
the Commission can record a finding that the Congress (1) Party or some leaders in that party had orga- g

niszd the violence which manifesied in the shape of riots. The Congress (1) Party denounced riots by -
regular resolutions adopted at offictal meetings of the paity. The Commission had at the instance Qr -
the CJC collected the newspapers published from Delhi during the 1st and 5th November, 1984. From
the Hindustan Times of 2-11-1984, it appears that the Delhi  Pradesh Congress Commitiee (1) on
1-11-1984 released the following statement :

on o

“Unity of the country was dearest 1o her (Smt. Gandhi) and she has given her blood for it.
The unity of India must not only be preserved and strengthened through tolerance and communal’_ﬂ'f
harmony but also good neighbourly relations.  Violence in any form an}v»here in the country ;
must be condemned and eschewed. The incidents of violence in the capital are condemnablc.
and every citizen must cooperate fully in maintaining peace and normaley in the country, User.~
of any violence in any shape or form would only negative and weaken the ideals for which Mrs. |
Gandhi stood and died.”

The Congress (1) Working Committee on November 1. 1984 appealed to the countrymen to exer~ "
cise restraint, maintain peace and harmony among all sections of the people and 1o uphoid the unity,
integrity and security of the nation for which Indira Gnndhl laid down her Il‘fe

In the face of these resolutions of Noxemher 1, 1984, by the. Cenn al and Union TerntOr) parw .
organs, it is indeed difficult to allege, much less dlScOver unseen hands of the party behind the violenca -
perpetrated so dastardly over members of the Sikh community at Delhi.  If the Congress (I) party or
some of its highly placed leaders had set the rioters’to operate. one would expect the Sikhs with Congress.
base and affinity 10 have escaped the deprédation,” No distinction appears to have been made by the -
rioters and there is no single instance placed before the Commission where the plea of a Sikh that he.
belonged to the Congress (1) had ever been acceded 1o by the rioters. . 1t is in the written submissions
of DSGMC on behatf of the riot-victims that even some of the enqumes conducted unofficially had léd
to the conclusion of suspicion only of such implication. The evident passivity of the police—a verv
uvnuasual role in police history and tradmon—oavc rise 10 the scope for suspicion. Many perhaps
genuinely thought—in the sitvation it cannot be said to be too far-fetched to be thought of—that it was .
the magic waund of the poliucian that tamed the police. Acting under such impiession which some
have believed to be true, the allegation of implication seems to have been made.
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Suppoit for the conclusion of the Commission that uncontrojled events of the 31st Ociober trans-
formed themselves into riotous activity with the participation and monitoring thereof by the anti-socials
alse can be drawn from the facts highlighted in the wiitten arguments furnished by the DSGMC. At
page 221 (of the written arguments) it has been said :
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“The mob was jubilating and dancing. There was no sign of soirow and grief on their
faces. They were no mourners of the Prime Minister, Mrs. Indira Gandhi but were totally
“unconnected with it,”

Eleven affidavits being of Smt. Trilochan Kaur (no. 2411), Smt. Gurdecp Kaur (no. 2307), Smt. Harjeet
Kaur (no. 2708), Smt. Sarabjit Kaur (no. 166), Smt. Nanki Devi (ne. 2550), Smt. Prakash Kaur {no.
2396), Smt. Prakash Kaur (no. 2407). Shri Tara Singh (no. 2531), Smt. Balwant Kaur {no. 2690), Shri
P’ Miglani (no. 2527) and Shri B.S. Kapoor (no. 2376) have been cited with preference to the conduct and
behavidur pattern of the people in the mobs in pages 22] 10 224.  Anti-social gangsters obviously had
no mourning to observe. The troubled atmosphere provided them with opportunity to plunder and
otherwise satisfy their animal desires and,. therzfore, the conduct exhibited of the people in the mobs
shows that the constituents of the mobs were the anti-social ruffians and usvally not the people of Smt.
Gandhi’s camp or party who oidinarily were likely to exhibit mournful conduct.  As already extracted
from the newsreport, they were inlow spirit everywhere after the shock.

-At page 226 three instances have been eited which show that outsiders came and incited the local
people to join the riots.  Reference has been made to the affidavits of Smt. Prakash Kaur {no. 36), Shri
Ishar Singh (168) and Shri Avtar Singh (172)—all on the victims s;de_to show that outsiders came in
a truck and incited the local people.

Along with these, the Commission would like to refer to an analysis presented at pages 216—218
of the writtenarguments where'a list of “organisers of the carnage’ at the local level is given. Nineteen
instances have been catalogued where people associated with Congress (1) have been named as organi-
sers. Of them fourteen are described as workers either of Congress (1) or its youth wing; four are said
to be local Congress (1) leaders and the other being the Secretary of a then Congress (1) M.P. Conceding
that there is no perticular reason to disbelieve the allegations so tabulated, considering the position
occupied by these people, the Commission 1s not in a2 position to hold that from their participation, the
Congress (1) party as such can be found to have organised the violence. On the other hand, these details
supplied by the DSGMC fortify the conclusion that some people of the Congress (1) party on their own
had indulged and partlclpated in the turmoil for considerations entirely their own. Every person who
takesadip inthe Gangesis notpirified. Similarly, everyone in the Congress (1yis nota Gandhi believing
and practising non-violence. The party label, therefore, does not attract the party nor takes away the
individual element. '

The Commitiee inits written submissions at p. 55 hasstated :

“A perusal of the record supplied by the Fire Brigade shows that the violence started in
the evening (of the 31st) from areas around All India Institute of Medical Sciences. The first
call which the Fire Brigade received about fire was at 5.30 p.m. on 31-10-84. A careful scrutiny
of the record shows that the rioters formed different groups, started from All India Institute of
Medical Sciences and indulged in violenice. One of such groups proceeded towards Defence
Colony from AIIMS and onthe way indulged in arson at Kidwai Nagar, NDSE 1 & II, Andrews-
ganj Chowk and then at Defence Lobuot])er group proceeded towards R.K. Puram from
there and mdu]ged in violence on the way.

One group proveeded towards Pnthwraj Road and a different group towards Hauz Kbas...
The routes followed by these groups can be easﬂy traced on the perusal of the record of the Flre
Brigade.”

A map showing this route has been placed by the Committee with the timings of the incidents shown.
therein on the basis of the Fire Brigade records.

1tis clear from these materials that arson on Jarge scale had been undertaken by these mobs after

- Jeaving the AIIMS. In the written submissions it hasbeen further stated at p. 56 :

“By about 8 p.m. on 31-10-84 ,the word spread 111r0un1mut the city and at somc places in
the city some persons indulged in v:oicnce But till late night the main incidents of violence in
the city were reported from the areas of South Delhi where the aforesaid groups were operating.”
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1t is reasonable to hold on the basis of what has been said above and on the basis of the news rcpo;i'{ of
incidents extracted while dealing with the incidents of the 31st Oclober, that the genesis of the riots began
from the ATIMS where large crowds had gathercd following the removal theieto of Smt. Gandhiin an
injured condition for medical attention.  Soon after the President left after his cavalcade was attacked,

the dispersal of the crowd started and this crowd which had been impaticntly waiting at the AIIMS for
the news fate had in store, became divided into groups and moved away. There is no allzgation. much
1255 evidence before the Commission that any plan was hatched at the A1IMS and/or passed on to the
cfowd. There is evidence which has been noticed in the writlen submissions of the Committec that a
good number of Sikhs had also come to the A1IMS and were in the crowd.  If anything was hatched
and spread, they would have known and were expected to disclose.  The A1IMS was not the place where
any planning could have been done.  Again, that was not the time appropriate for hatching any plot.
Angxiety and tension had spread cverywherc and all the people who had been waiting te know whether
the Prime Minister shall live or has perished could be in no moeod to hatch a plan or talk to some one or
group guiding them. Unless pre-plannzd (Smt. Gandhi's killing being sudden there is no scope for the
view of pre-planning) within such a short time and in that atmosphere no planning could have been done.
Thus the stand that violence was organiscd is difficult to accept.  QOn the other hand, as held earlier, the
evidence fits into the position that when the incidents started taking place and the police remained passive,
leading to the generation of fecling that if Sikhs were harassed no action would be taken, the situation
fast deteriorated and the anti-socials got inte the fray and gave the lead after taking over the situation.

It has now to be seen whether the violence was organised. The word ‘organised” according to the
Shorter-Oxford English Dictionary means “to form into a whol: with interdependent parts; to give a
definite and orderly structure to; to arrange or get up something involving united action.” The Oxford
English Dictionary gives the meaning to be ““to form i nto a whole with mutually connected and dependent
parts; to coordinate parls or elemehts so as to form a systematic whole: to give a definite and orderly
structure to; to syslematise; to frame and put into working order; to arrange or ‘set up’ something
involving united action.” Black’s Law Dictionary gives the meaning as *to systematise; to put into
working order; 10 arrange in order for the normal exercise of ils applopriate functions” Webster’s

Third New International Dictionary gwes the meaning of the word as “to arrange or constitufe into & =~

coherent unity in which each parthasa spscial function or retation.” In Words and Phrases, Permanent
Fdition, the word is said 1o mean “to arrange or constitute in interdependent parts, cach baving a special
function, act, office or relation with respect to the whole.” Reference may be made to the chapter on
Organised Crime in Criminal Investigation (llnd Edition) by James N. Gilbert (1986 Edn.) in which
at p. 434 it has been said : “They (such groups) typically involve a sizcable number ofmdmduals in the
planningand execution. A true organised crime groupsrequil esa continuouscommitment by its members,
although there may be some non-members participating for short periods of time.”

“To organise” thus involves a process which requires time, men, money and an aim or goal to achieve
which the organization is done. Theie is no material before the Commission to suggest that some Con-
gress (1) men had vndertaken any process involving the elements referred 1o at the AIIMS on the 3ist.
For reasons indicated elsewhere, the Commission has come to the conclusion that violence was not orga-
nised by the Congress (I) party or any official who matters in the party.

Even if “organised” involves the concept as mentionad above, in ordinary parlance it perhaps

covers instances where a process is systematised. In that popular sense—and the Commission takes the
phrase ‘organised violence’ in the reference by Government to have been used in that sense—the riots
after spontaneous origin got into channelised methods in the hands of gangsters. 1t would not be wrong
to say that there was organised violence at Dethi and that was done by the anti-social elements and in
the riots, thousands of pcople who do not really bslong to the classification of anti-socials did participate.
Many of these participants were people from the lower ranks of the Congress (1) party and sympathisers.

The Commission has accepted the posmon very appr opmleh advanced on behalf of the victims
that the entire community of the Sikhs constituting about two percent of thz country’s entire population
could not be made to suffer for the act 6f two misguided persons of that community. The Commission
cannot keep aside that logic while dealing with the jssue of involvement of the Congress (1) party as such
in organising violence. It cannot, therefore, draw a conclusion inferentially from the fact of participation
of party workers and sympathisers or some leaders at local levels that the Party was involved i organi-
sing what has perhaps been 1ightsy eatled a carnage.
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" The Commission accepts the evidence placed before it that nyost of the mobs, were from areas
different from where they operated and onlya few local people had joined such mobsto facilitate the opera-
tions. 1n some areas. however. local people had also organised riotous activities. In the mobs of both
types people of different communities (not being Sikhs) did join, The anti-social elements monitored

the activities of these mobs and played the principal role in killing. Jooting as also arson.  In these mohs

people with sympathy for the Congress (1) and assoctated with party activities uppear to have also joined
in good number. The Congress Party at the lower level— like any political party anywhere—has loose
ends and from the Lot of participation of people belonging 1o the party at thatlevel tisdifficult 0 accept
the stand that the Congress (1) party had either organiscd or participated as such in the 1ots. Such

- parficipation was not on party basis and it seems to be a fact that a number of peoplz belonging to the

Congiess (1) party at the Jower level had participated in the riots.  Anxiety’to participate in that way
perhaps was either with an avenging attitude—their leader having been dope to death by two Sikh
guards—or from the allurement of acquiring property by fishing in troubled waters. ' : \

As the Commission has already found, the riots at the 1initial stage weie spontaneous and by way
of reaction to the situation but later the riots developed into a set type.  The change in the pattern from
spontaneous reaction 1o organised riots was the outcome of the take-over-of the command-of the situation
by anti-social elements. It is said that Satan too hasa process and when taking to stanic activities the
anti-socia} elements ook to their organised process. Thisis how—and in this sense—violénce in Dethi
was indeed organised but such orga nisation was not by any political party or a definite group of persons
but by the anti-social elements which as will be shown in another part of this Reportis-quite a formidable
and powerful elementin the Indian capital. 1t would not be out of place to record here the finding of the
Commission that the pattern followed at Kanpur and Bokaro was the same. At Kanpur serious incidents
took place on October 31 itself and some on November 1, 1984. At Bokaro most of the incidents were
inthe morning of November 1, 1984. Asfound by the Commission, organised patiern in _fioiing appear-
ed in Delhi after 9 or 10 in the morning of November 1.  There was thus no connection in the aclivities
of Dellhi 2nd the activities of Kanpur and Bokaro. They were all locaily based: organised locally too
and came with the expzrtise of the anti-social elements a nd they have a common patiern ali the world

over.

1t 3s useful 1o refer to a passage from Hubert Blumer (quoted 1o ‘Colective Behaviowm’ by A M.
Lee in Principles of Sociology—1931) where it is said : '

“Individual behaviour changesin certain respects in the presence of other people. In most
instances, their presence tends to have a jestricting effect on behaviour. However, under certain
conditions, there is a permissiveness about a cr owd situation that induces individuals to act in
a less restrained way. An individual may normally never think of looting a store, but when
others aré doing so, he may join them. The thought that ‘everybody is doing it’ and the feeling
that as an individaal hé cantot be singled out and punished for his act may be respomnsitle for
this change of behaviour.” :

i

The anti-social elements had obvibusl_yj the sﬁ?port of a vast group of people who ordinarily would
not have liked to do what the anti-sociels did or do. :

A detailed statement of First Information Reports, Investigations with results, charge-sheets and
pending cases is in Vol. IT. Appendix 5 at pages 13-~18.

DAMAGE TO GURUDWARAS AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS
LOCATED AT DELHI

In apswer to interrogatory no. 48 of Application no. 43 of 1985 put to the Delhi Development
Authority, its Director (Works) has disclosed that 131 Gurudwaras loceted in different areas of Delhi
were repaired by the Authority. This position has also b@en accepted by the Dethi Administration.
It has in apswer to interrogatory no. 46(a) given the total number of Gurudwaras affected by arson,
looting and burning to be 180. Obviously 49 of the damaged Gurudwaras werc not repaired by the
Authority and that explains the fizures of 180 and 131, The details of these Gurudwaras are avaijlable
from the answer and the list is found in Vol. 1, Appendix 6at pp. 1921 Reference to
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the list would show that the Gurudwaras were spread  over different areas of the city. There
is also a disclosure that 11 educationai inslitutions, each one founded and jun by the
Sikh community, had been damaged  and were  repaired.  These educational mnstitutions,
asthe particulars (Vol. 11, Anpendix 7 p. 34) would show. are also spread  over differ-
cnt parts of the city.  From the fact thit so many Gurudwaras and educational institutions had been
damaged, it is reasonablz to hold that the rioters not only had the Sikh popuiationas their target but also
kept aneye on their religious institutions. Perhips for the first time in recent history such a large scule
mobilization against religious institutions of one particular community has been done.  Gurudwaras
as placcs of worship are sacred.  The scripturcs kept there are holy and held in the greatest esteem by
Sikhs. Guru Nanak, the founder of Sikhism, as detailed elsewherc., was a Hindw and he preached a
refigion and stood for a philosophy equally holy. sacied and acceplable to the Hindus. Gurudwaras
as places of worship of Sikh brothers deserved to be looked upon as holy and sucred and great reverence
should bave been shown to those.  The fact that Guiudwaras were made the target of widespread attack
is an exhibition of conduct facking fiith. devoid of respect for religion and the rejection of the traditional
approach. Mob frenzy and lust for stolen articles tempted the crowd to direct ils attention fowards
holy places. There s evidence before the Commission that many of the Gurudwaras were looted.

ROLL OF THE POLICE

Speaking about the strength of the Police force of Dethi, the then Police Commissioner Tandon
has said :

“Atthat time there were about 22,000 Constables. 3,000 Head Constables, 906 Asstl. Sub-
Inspectors, 1.500 Sub-Inspectors. 500 Inspectors, about 200 Asstt. Commissioners of Police,
35 Dy. Commissioners of Police. 6 Addl. Commissioners of Police and one Police Commissioner
in the Dciht Police establishment.”

Dcihi at that time was divided inte five police districts and 63 police stations and there were 25 police

posts. 1t is a fact that the police establishment had not been expanded commensurate with the expan-
sion of the population and problems. The police administration had been of the view thata greater
‘number of palice stations was necessary to exercise effective control and the outlying areas which were
thinfy populated and into which revenue villages had been included required more of attention,

Every police station has a Station House Offices of the Inspactor’s rank and to it are attached a
definite number of Sub-Inspectors. Assit. Sub-Inspectors. Head Constables and Constables. At the
headquarters. therz isa Central Contiol Room. Every police station is fitted with wireless arrangement
for keeping immediate contact with the headquarters as also the Control Roon:. The police force of
Delhiis a part of the Delhi Administration and members of the force are not trahsferable outside Delhi.
Once someone is taken into employment he is assured of service (subject to disciplinary control! and adverse
orders, if any) within the compact territory and transfer from one police station to anotheris not a serious
matter for the officer as it hardly involves a distance of 30-40 km. at the most. The Commissioner of
Police is necessarily a senior 1PS officer but the 5c‘.,‘up of Delbi Administration has become such that he
is under the administrative control of the Home Seeretary of the Delhi Administration who very often -
1s a comparatively junior officar of the Indian Administrative Service. Some times misunderstanding
creeps up m regard 1o exercise of this conirol on account of this situation. Under the constitutional
- scheme the President being in over all charge of the admiﬂsiimtion and such administration being run
with the aid and advice of the Cabinct, the Home Ministry of the Central government is the authority
to-excreise the controlling jursdiction. But the Administrator designated as- Lt. Governor is in direct
charge of law and order and the Police Commissioner 35 certainly subject to his control.

As mentioned in another part of the Report. Shri S.C.Tandon, 1PS, was the Police Commissioner
‘at the relevant time.  Hc had the authority both to promulgate orders under section 144, Cr. P.C,
as alsoimpose curfew.  Beat system prevailing earlier in Delhi had becn abandoned for quite some time.
No onc could tell the Commission the precise reason forsuch abando